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MFijiCare

summary of Key Financial Results for the Previous Five Years (Consolidated)

Net Profit / (Loss) after tax 4404908 1507328 6078045 5933758 | 1351319 |
Current Assets 34.53].?38' 34991310 41,?2?,54-4:? aarm,zzz] 48813970
\Non - Current Assets 4268))5 3880198 8452915| 15825843 | 15899708
Total Assets 38,849,513 38,871,508 50,190,459 62,017,175 | £5,713,678
Current Liabllities | 23150506 22327243 27,697,978 33749768 | 37516558 |
INan - Currant Liakilities 349 404 20151 S68.827 | 1422732 | 1,421,404
Total Liobilities | 23.498.909 22,528,754 28,266,755 35172500 | 38,937,962
Shareholders Equity 15,349,604 16,342,754 21,923,704 | 26,844,675 | 26,775,716
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MR. DUMITH FERNANDO
Chairperson

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, Management and Staff of FijiCare Insurance Limited (“FijiCare”) Group
| take this opportunity 1o present to you the 2023 Annuol Report of the FjiCare Group for the financiol yeor
anding 3ist December 2023

| am plecsed to report that despite challenges faced in the domastic market and globol economies, the
FlliCare Group announced oudited net profit ofter incorme tax of $135m (2022: $5.83m) tor the Group for
the finanecial period ended 3ist Dacermbear 2023. The reduced profit is a result of record claims paid out in
2023 of $38.8m (2022 $33.8m). As anticipated medical and motor vehicle claims were at ali-time highs
This has been the trend globally due to post covid effects for increased meadical treatments and
inflationary pressuras on motor vehicle parts and genearal cost of repoirs. With this backdrop, we are
axtremely thanktful tor and appreciative of the continued support and solidarity Irom our employees
customers, partners, and stakeholders shown during o transitionory year

Fiiir‘*nrﬁ has continued to grow its premiums with the gross written premium for the Group Increasing to
$53.4m trom $80.6m with significant growth notad In madical Insurance, comprahensive motor insurance
and comprehensive travel Insuraonce. FijiCare hos become a prominent player in the comprehensive
motor vehicle procduct cotegary. It IS also the only local insurer offering comprehensive travel iInsyrance In
the locol market. Our VanCare subsidiary oparating in Vanuaty has also performed woll and witnassed
growth In gross written pramiumas in comprahensive and compulsory third-party motor insuronce

it should olso be noted that the 2023 Group consolidated financial stotements has been prepared in
gecordance with the Companias Act 2016 with the exception thot the Group is yet to adopt new
accounting standards IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts. Consaquentty, the 2023 Group Audited Financial
Statements has o Disclaimer ol Oplnion which s well gxplained in the Directors’ Report and Indepandant
Auditor's Report contained in the linancial statemeants. With no local expertise availoble 1o suppon FijiCare
Group with the implemantation of the new standard, FiiCare Board and managemant I8 in the procass of
implameanting IFRS 17 standard throuah the assistance of specialist consultants based overséas. in ughr
of the challenges laced by all local Insurers, Reserve Bank of Fiji has announced that licensed insurers in
Fijl will only be required to iImplement IFRS 17 and reflect these in their prudential reparting from finonciol
period beginning lat January 2028, FijiCare will keep the market and its shareholdors informed on the
implementation ol IFRS 17 ag well as on the overall performance of the Group through periodic
meirkat annauncamants

In tarma of naw initiatives, 16 Mareh 2023, FijiCara In callabaration with Ministry of Woman Children & Social
Protection introduced a digital online portal for the benalfit ol the social welfore recipients. The online
portal enabled social wellare recipients’ greater convenience for claims lodgement by submitting and
upleading relevant Infarmation anline. The portal also ollows stokeholders (o view key data analytics
through a suite of real time reports and intracuces a central database that will help improve services and

minimige abuse of tha sociél wellare schamas
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ANSEEANTE LIMITED

FijiCare has established a strong reputation for innovation and technology driven solutions to improve
systems and overall customer experiences. In this regard, the Free Health Schemes online portal was
officially launched by Assistant Minister for Finance, Hon. Esrom Immanuel on 28 March 2023 which is an.
integrated digital platform through which Fijians can access information regarding the Free Health
Scheme. The online portal not anly reduces paperwork for privately licensed healthcore practitioners but
also fosters efficiency because of the simglicity of the entirely online platform and the information central
placement.

2023 also earmarked FijiCare’s strong drive towards brand promotion and recognition by portnering with
the Fijian Drua rugby team for a major sponsorship deal for the 2023 and 2024 Super Rugby Pacific season.
Additionally, FijiCare partnered with Fiji Television in August 2023 as a platinum sponsor for the 2023 Rugby
World Cup. As part of this collaboration, FijiCare became the official sponsor of exclusive rugby coverage.
FijiCare’'s sponsorship initiatives is to show its support towords rugby as a sport which is ciose to every
Fijian heart. Being the largest medical insurer in Fiji, we strongly believe in supporting health and wellness
of every Fijian, and we believe that sports like rugby play an instrumental role in physical and mental
well-being and an active lifestyle for everyone.

Based on the market demand, in 2023 FijiCare enhanced its COVID-18 travel insurance products by
intreducing o more comprehensive travel insurance cover. This enhanced coverage includes o wider
range of benefits such as medical, COVID-19, accidental death, and other travel-related benefits. This
extensive travel coverage was introduced in June 2023 alongside FijiCare’s new product, VuvaleCare,

VuvaleCare is an online platform that offers a bundled microinsurance product offering o range of coverage
options, including funeral assistance, term life insurance, fire on dwelling insurance, and personal accident
insurance. Individuals from the Fijion diasporag, regardless of their location, have the opportunity to
purchase this protective cover to safeguard their loved ones in Fiji. We believe this will contribute to the
advancement of financial inclusion and enhance insurance coverage for individuals who are particularly
vulnerable.

Conducting our business with integrity and in an ethically responsible manner is critical both for economic
growth and for ensuring that this growth is sustainable in the long-term. The FijiCare Group is fully
committed to uphold Good Corporate Governance ("GCG") policies and practices in accordance with
prevailing Fijian regulations and standards as well as international best practices and we continued to
focus on this in 2023.

We embark on our 2024 journey with optimism, even arnidst a backdrop of continued global market
volatility which may impact our domestic economic conditions. | would like to express my appreciation
and gratitude to my fellow Board Members, the Executive Director, ond the Management team for their
continued effort and dedication to the FijiCare Group. | would also like to sincerely thank and recognise the
contributions made by all employees of the FijiCare Group. It is through their dedication, hard work, and
pursuit of excellence that the FijiCare Group is o premier insurance company in Fiji and across the Pacific.
Finally, | wish to acknowledge the support and partnership from the industry regulators, Reserve Bank of Fiji
and South Pacific Stock Exchange. In conclusion, we thank our loyal customers and shareholders for

their continued trust and support and progressing hand-in-hand in our journey of Leading through
Innovation.

Mr. Dumith Fernando
(fr UL

Chalrperson

FijiCare Insurance Limited
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COMPANY PROFILE

Best Digital Best Digital
Insurance Initiative Fiji 2022 Insurance Provider Fiji 2022

International Business Magazine Awards 2022

New Insurance Digital Insurance
Product of the year 202] Initiative of the Year 202]

Insurance Asia Awards 2021

Spotlight Awards Reuben James Summerlin
Innovators of the Year 2019 Innovation of the Year 2018

SPX Annual Awards 2019 Pacific Financial Inclusion Program 2018
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A COMPANY PROFILE

Established in 1989, FijiCare continues to thrive as the leading medical insurer in Fiji. offering o wide ronge
of insurance covers to over 235,775 Fijlons. FijiCare has the distinction of being the sole insurance
company listec on the South Pacific Stock Exchange for over two decades. Holding o vast ronge of
products from Medical, Term Life, Motaor, Personal Accident, Public Liabiiity, WageCare, Mortgoge
Protection, Travel Insurance, and Bundled Microinsurance.

The Company has grown exponentially since its inception and has successiully expanded its operations
to Vanuotu in 2014, with the establishment of its fully owned subsidiary company - VanCare Insurance
Limitec. More recently, in 2021, the Company has ventured into the heaithcare sector by astoblishing o
wholly owned subsidiary, OmniCare Pte Limited.

FijiCare also introduced its Visitors Insurance on December I, 2021, marking a significant milestone os the
first local insurer in Fiji to deo so. The product offered coverage for various expenses related to COVID-18,
including Isolation costs, COVID tests, hospitalisation expenses, trip curtoiiment axpanses, transportation
costs, and repotriation of mortal remains. Qur product is specifically tallored (o cover expenses meadical
and non-medical treatrments related to Covid

in @arly 2023, FijiCare proudly introduced two exciting additions to their product lineup: FijiCare
Comprehensive Travel Insurance and VuvaleCare, an innovotive online platform for Bundied
Microinsurance. Due to the high demand for the product, FijiCare has made improvements to provide o
more comprehensive Travel insurance cover. This enhonced coverage inciudes a wider range of benefits
such as Medical, COVID-18, Accidentol Death, and other travel-related benefils. This extensive trave!
coverage was introduced in June 2023 alongside FijlCare's new product, VvuvaleCare.

VuvaleCare Is an online platform that offers a bundied micrainsurance product provided by FjiCare. The
comprehensive microinsurance package offers a range of coveroge oplions, Including funeral assistance.
term lite insurance, fire on dwelling insurance, and personal accident insurance. Fijlons, regardiess of their
location, now have the opportunity to purchase this protective cover to sofeguard their loved anes in Fig
This will contribute to the advancement of financial inclusion and enhance insurance coveroge for

individuals who are particularty vulnercble.

FijiCare is proud to be the lirst insurance company in the Fijlon market to offer o mobile app for our valued
policyholders. Qur innovative digital platform allows policyholders to conveniantly access their
information, claims history, updates, ond Insurance e-Card online. FijiCare received the 2018 Reuben
Jumes Summaerlin innovation Award for its significant cantribution ta Financial inclusion in the Pocific by
offering Bundled Microlnaurance. In 2019, the company received the prestigious Innovotor of the Year
award ot the South Pocifie Stock Exchange Annual Awards. At the 2021 nsurance Asio Awards, FijiCare was
honoured with two prestigious awards for thelr outstanding achievemantd in the insurance industry. We
had been recogniged lor the exceptional New Insurance Product of the Year and Digital iInsurance Product
of the Yeat- Fijl. In addition (o thig, FijiCare received two additionol awards from the intemational Business
Magazine Awards 2022 for thelr outstanding ochigvements (n the Best Digital Insurance initiative and Best
Health Ingsurance Provider - Fijl

Annual Report 2023
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COMPANY PROFILE

FijiCare, is not just in the business of insuraonce; wa're in the business of championing greotness. We are
proud to announce our exclusive partnership with the Fijian Drua, igniting a flame of passion and resilience
that echoes the spirit of our beloved nation. As the official insurer for the Fijion Drua rugby team, we stand
shoulder to shoulder with these fearless warriors of the field. Just as we safeguord the dreams of our
policyholders, we protect the aspirations and ambitions of these extroordinary athletes. Our innovative
approach sets new standards in the industry, ensuring they can focus on what they do best - playing
world-closs rugby - while we redefine whaot it means to protect and nurture sporting talent, inspiring
generations to dream big and encourage ‘Batter health for Fiji-

VALUES

FiliCare insunancs Lmited s dedicated to
providing innouative isurance produets
that provide guallty prataction with vallis
pricing. Weo will cantinue t achisve &
maintain FliCare's custormer service
pahcy whire Custarners: Ame Really

Evarything (CARE).

FipCare i ¢ company with a dynamet
cuitura of thared Dehets ond vailues that
ey oW Behovior ond iInfiugnces our
decisions on how to conduct business
ol o with innovalion

VISION
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DUMITH FERNANDO

Independent Chairperson

Mr. Dumith Farnando (s Chalrman of Asia Securities Holdings (Pvt) l1d. o leading independent inveatmeant
Bank in Sri Lanka which offers Investment Banking, Weaith Monagemaent, Stock Brokeroge and Research
services to Intermational and domastic institutions, corporates and high nat worth individuals. He served as
the Chalrman of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) from 2020-2022

Mr. Farnando has over twenty-six years of exparience in international and Sl Lankan capital markats,
Paving spent much of his carear in global inancial centars New York and Hong Kong with global banking
firme JPMorgan Chase and Cradit Suisse. Thera he held various roles across Equities, iInvastmant Banking,
Private Eguity and Corporata Stroteqy. Prior to his réturm to Sni Lonka in 2013, Mr. Fernando was Managing
Director and Group Chiel Oparating Otficer for Credit Suisse Asia Pocific = a US$2.5 billion revenue business
ooross 12 countrles = and o membar of that firm's Giobal Leadership Council

Mr. Fernando ls an independent Director of CSE-listed companies Union Assuronce PLC & Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC. He is also o moamber of the Ecanomic Policy Steering Committae of tha Ceyion Chambaer of
Commerce. He holds a Bachelor of Arts (BA) in Physics & Economics from Middiebury College in the United
States of Amarica and a Master of Businesa Administration (MBA) from Harvard Businoss School
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AVIRAJU

Executive Director

Mr. Avi Raju is the Founder and Managing Diractor of the Mount Sophia Group, @ Hong Kong basad private
investment group with investments giabaily. Over the lost 5 years, ha has lfocused his investmants in Fiji
his birthploce. Ha now has investments in insurance, health care, real estote and technology sactors in FijL
Mr. Rgju has over two decades of axperience working in the technology, real estate and investment
industries in the Asia Pacific region. Lintil May 2014, Mr. Raju was the Chiel information Otficer for Asia Pacific
at Savills Umited, an international proparty sarvices group listed on tha london Stock Exchange. He wos
respansible for the stratagic developmant and managaement of business systems across all of Savills’ 15
Aglan ottlces with over 17,000 amplayoes.

Mr. Raju has o Master of Business Administration (MBA) from the Richard Ivey School of Business
(University of Western Ontario, Canada) and a Bachelors' Degree in Commarce from the University of
Auckland, New Zealand. Mr. Raju was born in Flji and currently resides in Singapore. Pnor to Singapora, he
has lived and workad in Hong Kong, Australiao and New fealand.
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JENNY SEETO

independent Director

Ms. Jenny Saato is the Chairparson of Investment Fiji. She has extensive experience in the areas ol gover-
nance and rigk managéamaent, having spent aimost 40 years ol PricewaternouseCoopers where she wos
Sentor Partner until her retirerment in 2017, Ms. Seeto has provided oudit, taxation, human resources and
other advisory services to a divarse range ol international ond local clients in various sectors of the econ-
omy Including broking and insurance companies and linancial institutions, She also contributed to the
amendmants to the Insurance Act and other legisiation affecting the finance and credit sectors

Ma. Seeto holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree In Accounting and Econamics from the University of the South
Pacitic, She holds a Certificate of Public Proctice lrom the Fijl Institute of Accountants. Ms. Seelo has olso
been bestowed with national awards for her contributions towards the economic development Ocross
dilferent sectors

Annual Report 2023
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SYLVAIN FLORE

independent Director

Mr. Sylvain Flore has over 45 yaars experience in the insurance industry. Mr_Flore hos served os the
Chial Exacutive Otficer lor the QBE Asia Pacitic region and as o member of their Divisionol Executive
team oversaaing their operations in Fiji, French Polynasia, New Caledonia, Popua New Guinea, Solomon
Islands and Vanuatu, Over his career, Me. Flore has served in various senior roles in Mauritiug, Austratio and
tha Pacitic ragian in the insurance industry

Mr. Fiore Is o Chartered Insurer from the Chartered Insurance institute (UK) and an Associote Fallow of the
Australian Institute of Managemaent,

Annual Report 2023
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Leadership is the capacity
to translate a vision into reality.
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MS. KRISHIKA NARAYAN

GROUP CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Ms. Krighika Narayan is the Group Chiel Operating Officer for FiiCare insurance Limited since 2020, where
she oversaes the overall monagement of the company. Belore joining FIL, Ms. Narayan served as the Chiel
Exacutive Officer of the South Pacilic Stock Exchange tor 3 years of her over 11 years tenure. Ma. Narayan
has extensive knowledge and experience in the financial sector. specialising in Legal, Operations,
Governance, Adminlstration ang Communications. Ms. Narayan serves on various boards and
comimittees as the Chalrperson or as a Director. Ms. Narayan holds a Bachalor of Lows Degres and o Post
Graduote Certifivate in Financial Adrninistration from the University of the South Pocific. In 2021 Ms
Narayan wai appeinted to the board of VanCare insurance Limited. She is also the Execulive Director of
OmniCare Pte Limited trading as MIOT Pacific Medical
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MR. RONALD NARAYAN

GROUP CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER

Mr. Ronald Narayon |s the Group Chief Information Officer for FiiCare Insurance Limited since 2020, where
he oversees the managamant of the FiL Claims Function as well as the implementation of its innovative IT
framewark: Mr. Ronald Narayon joined the Company Finance Department in the yaor 2000 and was
promatad to IT Mancager in 2010, He has over 20 years of extensive work experience in the Finance
Department and has bean actively heading FiliCare’s digitisation and IT implementation process. He hos
peen leading the Company’s innovative IT transformation and is ot the lorafront of all regional and
Internaticngl projects. Mr. Narayan has a Diplama in Financial Planning ANZIF (Sor Associate) CP and
holdds en MBA from thae Univarsity of the South Pacific. Me serves os the Executive Director tor WeCarm Ple

Lirmibema,
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MR. VICTOR ROBERT

GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Victor Rabert is the Group Chigf Financial Officer for FijiCare insurance Limitad sinca 2020 He has over
two decades of extensive financial expertise working for FIL as part of the seniar leadarship team in the role
of both Finance Manager ond Comipany Socretary. Mr. Robart leads the charge in managing the linancials
of FijiCare Insurance Limited and its subsidiaries. He is the Executive Director for VanCare Insurance
Limited. Mr. Robert alse serves as the Directar for OmniCare Pte Limited troding as MIOT Pacific Medical

As the Finance lead, Mr, Robert overseas the Finance function at FijiCare Insurance Limited and its
subsidiaries while providing sound financial advice to the Board. He holds o hos a Diploma in Accaunting
from the University of the South Pacific and a Diploma in Financial Planning ANZIF (Snr Associote) CIP in
addition to an Master of Business Administration (MBA) lrom the University of the South Pocific
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MS. SIMA MALA

GROUP CHIEF MARKETING OFFICER

Ms. Sirmia Mala serves os the Group Chief Marketing Officer for FijiCare Insyrance Uimited since 2023, In hee
role, she i responsible for overseeing the marketing and motor insurance function of the company
Ma. Sima Mala has an extensive 21-year tenure with FIECare. She possesses extensive axpertise in marketing,
glaims, and underwriting. For the past 14 years, Ms. Mola has sucoessfully led the motor division of FijiCare,
resulting In significant growth in market share. She has olso worked closety with senior management os
the Manager of Marketing. playing o cruciol role in the company's success and growth in recent years.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Management

Edwin Ashneel Chand Jasmine Vineeta Chand Ronit Prasad

Groug Monoger Agsaunting & Flinange Manoger Clims Monager Aegount

Bhavik Chand Mug]nu Lulse 5ugu|tu Shi\"n!ﬂl Chund

Baldteant Monisger Merkibing ARRISTONE MERCgOT ¢ Anuistont Mo noget

Annual Report 2023



|| Flji : N.um..”m.m MANAGEMENT TEAM

4 s )

!r-H A

Patricia Faith Rajnesh Kumar Priyu Darshani Naidu

Agsistant Manciger Undenariiing gsiztant Mancger Chainns Agsigtand Wononer Cimgerst

Robert Crocker Mﬂ"*shﬂ Lal Arun Singh

Agulsrant Manager Lndorwriting tant Manager LA Asglitort sanoger Sigima
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Your Trust,
Our Responsibility
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
GOVERNANCE, LEADERSHIP & ACCOUNTABILITY

FijiCare Insurance Limited (‘’FIL, ‘Campany’) remains steadfast in its commitment to develop and
maintain o strong governance framawork that is consistent with industry best practice, throughout the
Group, recognising that good corporate govemance is vital Lo assist Manogement in their delivery of the
Compuny's strategic objectives, and to operate o sustainable business for the benefit of gll stakehoiders.
Fil's approach to corporate governance s basad on o sel of volues ond behaviours that undearpin our
day-to-day activities, and are designed (o promote lransparency, inngvation, foir dealing, and the
protection of stakeholder interests, including our customers, our sharenciders, our employees, and our
community. It includes aspiring to the highest standords of corporate govemnance, which Fil sees os
fundamental to the sustainability of our business ond our perfformance.

FIL reports to the Reserve Bank of Fiji ('RBF'} as a Financial Institution designated under the Reserve Bonk of
Fijl Act 1983, and the South Pacilic Stock Exchange ('SPX’) as o Publicly Listed Company. As such, FiL is
governed by the insurance Act 1998, Insurance Law Reform Act 1996, the REF's twelve Insurance
Supervision Policy Staterments, Prudential Supervision Policy Statements, and addendum guidance noles

as well as the $PX's Continuing Listing Rules (subsumed within the Listing Rules) ond the Companies Act
2015

CORPORATION
INTERESTS
STAKEHOLDER

CORPORATION
NSPARENCY®E POLICY.

S 7| ACCOUNTABILITY
CO -J '_ Thhh'ﬁphﬁf;f‘-ﬂ T
® L DECISION
NTEGRITY 2
POLICY i

1r'1 H"u-t A

HAVI(}R ' :

EHAVIO Riesa. S DLDER
LIC 3-# | ."‘

o t §ILITY
Annual Report :nz

i LW 'I'

AFFAlRS%*r:

b INTEGRITY
INTERESTS




#FijiCare

Annual Compliance Report on Corporata Governance in Accordance with SPX Listing Rules.

E GOVERNANCE

Principle Requirement Compliance Status
1. Establish Clear Separation of duties: Clear The Board derives its mandate from
Responsibilities for separation of duties between the Board Charter and is governed by
Board Oversight Board and Senier Manaogement. Fil's Articles of Assaciation
Regulatory Guidance

According to the RBF's Prudential
Supervision Policy Statement Ne. 1 -
Minimum Requirements for Corporate
Govarnance of Licensed Entities
("PSPS 1), the minimum responsiviiiies
of the Board encompass raviewing

Company’s gavernance framework
and its adherence to current
legisiative and reguiatory norms, as
weil os other broad roles outlined in
section 515 of PSPS L

To this effect, FiL has implemented a
Corporate Governance Charter which
fairly incorparates the requiremants of
PSPS 1 Senior Management, headed
by the Executive Director assists the
Board with the operational running of
the company.

These requirements have oiso been
incorporated into Fil's Board Chaorter.

Board Charter: Adopt a Boord BOARD CHARTER

Charter detailing functions and

responsibilities ol the Board. IT:: m:ﬂg‘:m" cm:sr::dmn
the Board and Senior Managamant, in
order to manage expectations and
avoid misunderstandings about thair
respective roles and accountabilities.

| The Board is responsible for the over-
' sight of FiL and its sound and prudant
. management, with specific duties as
| sét out in its Charter. The Directors
employ a proactive, dynamic, ond
| hancls-on approach in their role to
ensure the maintenance of the high-
est ethical stondards and business
succaess. The Board Choarter clearly
identifies the Boord's roles ond
responsibilities s follows:

‘Annual Report 2023
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I WANCE LIMETED CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principle Requirement Compliancs Status

«Overseeing the effective
management and controd of Fil.

*Ensuring thot new Boord members
undergo adequate inducton training
and are fully cognisant of their
raspactive duties and responsibilities,
as well as ensuring that a formaol
programme of professional ongoing
developmant and training is set up:

*Setting up and reviewing the strotegic
direction of Fil:

*Approving and monitoring of key
budgets, business plans, financial
statements, finoncial policies and
financial reporting:

*Developing and implementing key
corporate policies, procedures and
controls as necessary Lo ensure
appropricte standards of accountabifity.
risk management and corporate
governance;

«Ovarsesing the adequacy of managarnial
resources to ansure thare is odequate
depth of resources and appropriate
successian planning:

«Approving proposals for mojor new
investments, capital expenditure and
capital monagement initiotives os

proposed by management; and

«Ensuring that Shareholders receive
high quality, relevant ond accurate

information in a timaly monner and
that investors generally are able to

trade in the Compaony’s securities in
o market which is efficient, competitive
ond intarmed.

2. Constitute an Board Composition: Balanced | The Board, supported by its three
Eftective Board Board Camposition with Executive | subcommittees, s tasked with o brood
and Non-Executive Directors | purpose 1o cover its strolegic direction,
of which 1/3rd of total number of | maintoln accountability, and ensure
directors 1o be Indepandent the sustainable growth and finoncial
Directors. soundness of the Company. Above all it
Is responsible to its Shareholders for
upholding good corporate govermnance
practices throughout the Company
whilst increasing shareholder value and
optimising company perlormance
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OVERNANCE

Principle

Requirement

Complionce Stotus

The Board currently consists of

Mr. Dumith Fernondo ~ Choirperson
Mr. Avinesh Raju - Exacutive Directer
Ms. Jenny Seeto — Independent Direcior
Mr. Sylvian Flore - independent Director

The Directors each bring with them a
vast and varied resarve of experience,
specialisation, and in their
respective tigids, ranging from insurance
& Commerce, information Technology.
Business Strategy, Governance and Risk

uunogamem_

Gendar Diversity: Do you have a
policy for promating gender
divarsity at Board level and have
you achleved your palicy goals?

The Board Charter makes provisions for
gendar diversity at the Board level Ms.
Jenny Seato is the first fernala director
ta serve on the FijiiCare Board.

Narmination Committes; Selection,
approval, renewal and succession
al Directors to be conducted by
Nomingtion Committee in accor-
dance with Articles of Association
al the Company and Fit and
Proper Policy of Reserve Bank.

Although FiliCare has not established a
separate Nomination Commiltes, its
Governance & Risk Management
Committea has been charged with the
responsibility of selection, opprovol,
renewol, ond succession of directors in
line with the Company’'s Articles of
Association and Board Charter

Boord Evaluation: Proacess of
avaluation of performance of the
Boorg, ita Cormmittasas and inchichudl
directors. Evaluation to be linked
to key performance indicators of
the listed antity

The Board Evaluation process s outined in
the Board Chorter. The provisions of the
Board Charter provides avenues for
bath intarnal and axtamal evaluation at
its discration

Annual Repart 2023

Directors Training Director’ training
and Induction procedure to be In
place to allow new directors to
participate tulty and affectively.

The Board Charter mokes provisions for
Directors’ tramning
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CORPORATE GOVERNAN

Requirement

Compliance Status

Principle

3. Appointment of Chief
Executive Officer/
Managing Director

4. Appointment of a
Board and Company
Secretary

&, Timely and balanced
disclosure

8. Promote ethical and -
responsible declslon
making

Annual Report 2023

Board Sub-committees:
Board must have sub-committees
which must at minimum include-

« Audit Commities;

* Risk Management Committes;
and

« Nomination Committes/Recnuitment
Commities

CEC: To appoint a suitably qualified
and competent Chief Executive
Officer | Managing Director.

Company Secratary: Board to
appoint a suitably quolitied and
compatant Company Sacretary,
whao is accountoble to the Board,
through Chair, for all compliance
and governance [ssuas,

Annual Reports:

Timaly ond accurate disclosuras
arg made in Annuol reports as per
Rula 51 of Listing Rules.

Payment to Directors and Senior
managemeant.

Sufficient information to be provided
to shareholders on remunaration
pald to Directors and Senlor
Managment.

Continuous Discloalre:

Gaenaral disclosures or company
announcemants to be made in a
timaly manner. Tha disclosures
should be factual without omitting
matarial infarmation and ta ba
axpresged in a clear and objective
mannar 1o shareholclars.

Code ol Conduct:

« Audit Commitiee;

« Governance & Risk Manogement
Committee; and

= Treasury & Investment Committee

The Executive Director has baen
appointed in line with the Board
Charter requirameants.

Fi. has oppointed o Compony Secretary
in line with the requirements outlined
in the Board Charter, who repors to
the Boord as per his duties.

Disclosures mode in conformity with
the SPX Listing Rules.

Disclosures made in conformity with
the SPX Listing Rules. FIL takes o
proactive stance on this, and
practices dissemination of cantinuous
disclosures on an ongoing basis.

Disclosures made in conformity with
the SPX Listing Rules. FilL tokes o
proactive stance on this, and
proctices dissemination of continuous
disciosures on an ongoing basis.

The Code ol Conduct is in ploce and
inciuded in the Board Charter and the
HUMOn ReEgources Fromawork
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principle

Reguirement

Compliance Status

To establish a minimum Code of
Conduct of the listed entity
applicable to directors, senior
management and empioyees
and conduct regular trainings
on the same.

7. Register of Interests

Caonflicts of Interest:

Transactions with related parties
rasulting in conflict of interast are
disclosed ond a register is naintained
for this purpose.

Register of Interests is in place for
Board of Directors ond Stoff members.
A policy on Conflict of interest and
Reloted Porty Tronsoctions has
been implemented.

8. Respect the rights
of shareholders

Communication with shareholdars:

To design communication strategy
o promaote effective communication
with shareholders and encourage
their participation, Examples.
Communication through Annual
Reports, Annual General Mestings,
o any other means of electronic
communication

Timaly disclosure to all shareholders is
dane through Morket Announcements.
This is subsaquently shared on FijiCare
socinl medio platforms.

Annual Report and Annual General
Meetings are also disseminated/
conducted yaarly

Wabsite:

To crecte and maintain a Website of
the listed entity to communicate

FiL's official website: www fijcarecom fj

FiL also engenders a proactive approach)
in ree and Mmutudl communication with

effectively with shareholders and all its shareholders through its official

ather stakeholders. All matters of Linkedin account and other social

impartance to be updated reguiarly | media platforms.

on the Wabsite.

Grievance Redressal Mechanism: Sharehoider Grievance Redressal Policy
has Deen implermented

lo establish a Grievance Redressal

Mechanism for Shareholders 1o

address shareholders cormploints

and grievonces.

Shareholders’ Complaints: Nonae received

To provide the number of share-
holders’ compiaints received and
attended to during the year
Provide reasons if any complaint is
unresolved or unattendec

Annual Report
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CORPORATE GOVE

RMNANCE

Principle

Reqguirement

Complionce Status

Corporgte Sustainobility,

To odopt o business approach
thot crectes long-term shareholder
value by embracing opportunities,
managing risks, maximising
profits and minimising negative
sociol economie, and emvirgnmental

impocts.

This approach is outiined in Fil's 3 year
Strategic Fromewocrk, os well os its
internal poficies. FIL hos long been a

‘gains — thisisillustroted in the lounch of

Fiji's first insurance mobiis opp. FiCore
Is continuously working on other digital
sohytions and CSRA octivities, information
on which is released te the market in
real time.

9. Accountability and
audit

10, Risk Managemaent

Annual Report 2023

Internal At

To appoint an internal auditor or an
alternative mechanism to achieve

the objectives of risk management,
control and govemance.

Extarnal Auclit:

To appoint an external auditor who
reports directly to the Board Auct
Committee.

Ratation of Extarnal Auditos:

To appoint the external auditor for
fixed term requiring senior partner of
the audit firrm to rotate once in every
thrge or less financial yeans.

Audit Commnitten:

To establish an Audit Committee
comprising of at iwast 3 members of

which majority are indepondant
and Chair ia not Chalr of the Board

Risk Management Policy:

To astablish o Risk rient
Policy to address risk oversight, risk
Frc) ment and intarnal control
The Palicy to clearly define the roles
and responsibiities of the Board,
Audit Cormimittes, Managemaent and
Iritarnal Aucit function.

FiL's Internal Audit is handiad by its

Internal Audit Function, oversean by
Fil's iInternal Auclitor - SouthPoc Advisory
Limited.

FiL is audited annually by its external
auditors who provide their report to
the shareholders through the Annual
Raeport. The external ouditors are
appointed on the recommaendation
of the Audit Cornmittee and approval
by FijiCare Board

Tha Audit Commitiee is taskad with
this role undar the Audit Committae
Chorter. It ensures compliance with
thase raquiramants

| Currently in ploce ond in complionce.

Thare is a Risk Monogement Framework

and Risk Policy in place which demarcates
the separate bul intertwined roles the
Boord Govermance & Risk Manogamant
Caommittes, and intemaol
Auctit play in the risk of FiL.
Al the managerial evel the intemal Risk
Managemant Committes reports to

the Governonce & Risk Monogement
Committee, which in turn reports to the
Boord
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Principle
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Requirement
Whistle Blower Policy:

As part of risk management
strategy, establish a Whistie Blower
Policy by creating a mechanism of
reporting concemns of unethicol
behaviour, actual or suspected
fraud ar viokation of the listed antity’s
eode of conduct or ethics policy,
5FX Rules or Componies Act
|Refer Rule B8 of the Listing Rules]

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Compliance Stotus

Whistle Blower policy currently in ploce:
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Fiji TV 2023 - Rugby World Cup Sponsorship
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

DIRECTORS' REFPORT

In accordance with a rescluticn of the Boord of Directors of FijiCare Insuronce Limited (the Hoiding
Company), the directors herewith submit the consolidated stotement of financial position of FijiCare
Insurance Limited and its subaidiur{y companies (together “the Group”) as at 31 December 2023, the
related consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date
ond report as follows:

Directors

The names of the directors of the Holding Company at the date of this raport are:

Dumith Femando — Chairman
Jenny Seeto
Avinesh Raju
Sylvain Flore

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Group during the year were as follows:

Entity Principal Activities

Fijlcare Insurance Limited underwriting ol medical, term life, mortgage protection,
wagecare, personal accident, public liability, funeral
benelits, mator vehicle, paramatric climate, travel and
property (under micro insurance project) insurance risks.

vanCare Insurance Limited Underwriting of motor and other general insuronce risks.
WaCare Pte Limited invastmant in propertias and real astate
OrmniCare Pte Limited Medical and Diagnostic Centre

Thare wara no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Group during the yaar.
Rosults

The consolidated protit after income tax was $1,351.318 (2022: $5.833,768). Total consolidoted
comprahansive Income tor the year was $1.394,357 (2022: $5.781.740)

Dividends

The directors declared dividends of $1,.483,318 during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022 $860,.768)
out of retalned earnings.

Basis of Accounting - Going Concermn

The consdlidated linancial statements of the Group have béen prepared on a going concern basis. The
directors consider the application of the going concern principle to be opproprate in the preparation of

these congsolidated linancial staterments as they believe thot the Group has adequate funds to meet its
liawilities as and whan thay tall dus over the next twalve months.

Bad and Doubtiul Debts

Prior to the complation ol the consolidated finoncial statemaents of the Group, the directors ook reasonable
steps to ascertaln that action had been taken in relation to writing off of bod debts and the making of
allowance for doubtful debts. In the opinion of the directors, adequate allowance has been made

tor doubtiul detts. w

Annual Report 2023
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SURASCE LIMITER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT [CONT'D]

Bad and Doubtful Debts (Cont'd)

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances, which would render the
amount written off for bad debts, or the allowance for doubtful debts in the Group, inadeguate to any
substantial axtent.

Current and Non-Current Assets

Prior to the completion of the consolidated financial statements of the Group, the directors took
reasanable steps to ascertain whether any current and non-current assets were unlikely to realiss in the
ardinary course of business their values as shown in the accounting records of the Gr Where
necessary, these assets have been written down or adequate allowance hos been mode te bring the
values of such assets to an armount that they might be expected to realise.

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances, which would render the
values attributed to current and non-current assels in the consolidoted fingncial stotemenis of the
Group misleading,

Unusual Transactions

in the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group during the financial year were
not substantlally atfected by any item, transaction or avent of an abnarmal charactar, nor has there
arisen betwesn the end of the financial year and the date of this rt any item, transaction or event
of an abnormal charaeter likely, in the opinion ol the directors, o alfect substantially the rasults of the
operations of the Group in the current financial year.

Significant Events During the Year

a) l}urInF the year, in February 2023, the Governmant of Fiji had announced that proof of vaceination
or travel [nsurance for International travellers arriving in the country was no longer required. This
had drastic impaet on the revenue stream of travel ingurance for the holding company in the current
financlal year.

b) In accordance with iIncoma Tax (Rates of Tax and Lavies) (Amendment) ulations 2023 of Fiji,
commaeanaing from financial year ended 31 December 2023 (tax year 2023), the Fijl entities are subject
to corporate income tak at the rate of 28%. Accordingly, the corporate incomea tox rote has increased to
25% from financlal year ended 31 December 2023. Delerred tax ossets and deferred tax liabiiities have
been re~calculated at 26% and the effect of change in tax rate has been adjusted 1o Income tax axpense
tar the year ended 31 December 2023 for Fiji antities.

Events Subsequent to Balance Date

No matters or circumastancas have arisen since the and of the linancial year, which would require
adjustments Lo, of disclasure in the linancial statements.

New Insurance Standards ~ IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The consolldated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and with the
requiramants of the Companies Act, 2015, except lor the Group not adopting IFRS 17 - inswance Contracts
and IFRS § = Financial Instruments.

The Campanias Act reﬂmru tha Companies to comply with the Accounting Standards adopted by the Fi
Ingtitute of Chartered Accountants (FICA). FICA has adopted IFRS as issued by the Internationo
Accounting Stondards Board, IFRS 17 bacame mandatorlly effective for onnual reporting period beginning
on or after | January 2023,

Howevar, with no local resources avallable to assist in implementation and resources available outside

ol Fijl was sporse during 2023, it was impracticable for the Group 1o adopt IFRS 17 efficiently ond
alfactively, and It was apparant that IFRS 17 implementation will require substantial human,

tachnologleal and financial resaurces,

Annhual Report 2023
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
DIRECTORS' REPORT [CONT'D]

FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

New Insurance Standards - IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (Cont'd)

Furthermore, Reserve Bank of Fiji (RBF) has anncunced that licensed insurers in Fiji will only be requirted

to implement IFRS 17 and retiect thess in their prudentiol reperting from finoncial psriod beginning 1
January 2026

The Group is yet to adopt IFRS 17 and the Group has continued to maintain the books of occounts as per
the decounting policies in line with the requirements of IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts (superseded
standard relating to Insurance Contracts. IFRS 17 aiso provided temiporary exemption from adoption of
IFRS © - Financial Instruments)

Other Circumstances
As at the date of this report;

(i) nocharge on the assets of u;m:mmmy in the Group has been given since the end of the
financial year to secure the liabilities of any other persorn,

(i) no contingent liabilities have arisen since the and of the financial year for which any company in
the Group could becomea liakle, and

(iil) ne contingent liabllities or other liabilities of the Group have become or are likely to become

anforec within the period of twelve months ofter (he end of the financial year which. in the

Einlun of the directors, will or may substantially affect tha ability of the Group to meet its
obligations as and when they fall due.

As at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circurnstances that have arisen, not
otherwise dealt with in this report which would make adhaerence to the existing method of valuation of
assats or liabllitles of the Group misleading or Inappropriate.

Directors’ Benefits

Since the end of the previous financial yaar, no director has received or become entitled 1o receive o
benetit (other than those disciosed in the consolidated financial statements of the Group) by reason of
a-cantract made by any company in the Group or by a related corparation with the director or with a

firm of which he/she s @ member, or with a company in which he/she has a substantial financial
Intarest,

For gnd on beholl of the Board and in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors

Dated this 28 day of March 2024,

e ) — — — i — —— —

Dilractor Director
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
The declaration by directors is required by the Companies Act, 2015
The directors of the Holding Cormpany have made a resolution that declaras:

a) inthe opinian of the directors, the consolidated financial stotements of the Group for the financiol

year ended 3] December 2023;

I. eamply with International Financial Reporting Standards and give a true and foir view of the

b} The directors have recelved an independence declaration by the auditors as required by Section 385

financial position of the Group as ot 31 December 2023 and of the mance and cash flows
of the Group for the year ended 3] December 2023 with the exception that the Group continues
to apply previous insurance accounting standard IFRS 4 insurance Controcts, ond is yet 1o

‘adopt new accounting standards IFRS 17 Insurance Controcts; and
iil. have been prepared in accordance with the Campanies Acl, 2018 wilh Lhe exception thot the

Gruur: continues to apply previous insurance accounting stondord IFRS 4 iInsurance Controcts,
and is yet to adopt new accounting standards I'RS 17 Insurance Contracts for the reasons
autlined in the Directors' Report. Resarve Bank of Fiji (RBF) has announced that licensed
Insurers in Fiji will only be required to implement IFRS 17 and reflect these in their prudential

raporting from financial period beginning | Jonuary 2026;

of the Companies Act; 2015; ond

¢) At the date of this declaration, in the opinion of the directors, there are reasonable grounds to balieve

that the Group will be able to pay its dabits as and when thay become dua and payobie.

For and on behalf of the Board and In accordance with a resclution of the Board of Directors.

Dated this 28 day al March 2024

LS o

Diractor Diractor
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Tet+578 331 4300

Fax: +679 330 1841

Email info@idoliiicom
Difices in Suva and Lautoke

FRICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION TO THE DIRECTORS

FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

BDO

Chamered AcCountonts
Level 10 FNPF Ploce

243 Victorio Parode
GOPO Box 855

Suva, Fiji

As Group auditer for the audit of FijiCare Insurance Limited aond subsidiary companies for the financial
year ended 31 December 2023, | deciare to the best of my knowledge aond belief, there have besrn

(a1} no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Companies Act, 2015 in relation

to the audit; and

(b) nocontraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in ralation to the audit

/A

Pradeep Patel
Partner

Suva, Fiji

DD

BDO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

28 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of FijiCare Insurance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engoged to audit the consolidated financial statements of FijiCare Insurance Limited ond its
subsidiary companies (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
os at 31 Decamber 2023, and the consaolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehaensive
income, consolidated statement of ¢ 5 in equity and consclidated statement of cash flows lor the
year then ended, and notes to the conselidated financial statements, including @ summary of material
accounting policies.

Because of tha significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of
our report, wa have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate aoudit evidence (o provide o bosis
tor an audit opinion on theze consolidated financiol statements. As such, we do not express an opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statemants of the Group.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

IFRE 17 = Insurance Contracts and IFRS - 8 Financial Instruments are mandatorily effective for the Group
for periods baginning on or after 1 January 2023 with a retrospactive application to the correspanding
periocs ended 3l Decembaer 2022 and 31 December 2021, Howaver, the Group hos not adopled these
standords as the Group 14 still in the design phose of the transition of these stondards.

Tha possible Impact of IFRS 17 and consaquantial impact of IFRS & could be material and parvasive on
the Group Impoacting significant number of financial statement areas, bolances and disclosures.

in the absence of a detalled impoct assessment, we could not obtain sufficient appropriate audit
avidence to assess the potential impact of the effects of omissions on the statement of financial
Boaitlun of the Group as of 31 December 2023 and its finoncial performance for the yeor ended 31
ecembar 2023 and for its corresponding retrospective prior periods. The Group has continued to
maintain the baoks of account as per the accounting policies in line with the ruiuirtrrmu of IFRS 4 -
E‘-;umnbu Ecﬂuig"““ (superseded standard relating to Insurance Contracts) for the year ended 31
cember 2023

Key Audit Matters
Kay audit matters are thase matters that, in our professionol judgemaent, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financiol staterments of the current pariod. These matters were addressed

in tha contaxt of our audit of the consalidated financial statemaents og a whole, and in farming our
opinian tharaan, we do not provide o separate opinion on these matters

BRG, Cnortered Accountanty, a Fil Fartrmmbigy s o member firm ol 00O imermanonnl Limited o UK company Smited
by geircinted, dnd lerme poarts of th inbemationgl BEOO netwark of inckegendent o ks D

RO b e brong neeme for e BOO Natwork ord for each of the BOO parribe iiem
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT [CONT'D]

To the Shareholders of FijiCare Insurance Limited (Cont'd)
Key Audit Matters (Cont'd)

Key audit matters

Haw aur audit addressed the matier

1. Adoption of IFRS 17-Insurance Contracts and IFRS 8 - Financial Instruments

IFRS 17 = Ingurance Contracts and IFRS - 8
Financial instruments are mandatorily effective
tar periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
with o retrospective application to the
corresponding periods ended 31 December
2022 and 3] December 2021

However, the Group has not odopted these
standards as the Group is still in the design
phase of the transition of these standards.

Non adoption of IFRS 17 was considered as o
key audit motter as the possibie impact of IFRS
17 and consaquential impact of IFRS 9 could be
raterial and pervasive on the Group impacing
signiticant numbear of financial statement
arecs, balances and disclosuraes.

The Group has continued to maintain the books
of accounts as per the accounting policies in
line with the requiremeants of IFRS 4 - iInsurance
Contracts (superseded standard relating to
Ingurance Contracts) for the year ended 3)
December 2023.

Our gudit procadures included, amongst others

® Heold discussions with the management and
Audit Committae in reldtion to the plans and
progress of IFRS 17 implementation project

® Reviewed the initial IFRS 17 Diognostic Assess-
ment carried out by external consultants ond
avulﬂadthegnpsidmtﬂhdhhramﬂ
compared to the existing accounting policies
adopted by the Group in comparson to the
requirements of IFRS 17 and the potential high
leve! impoct on recognition, measurement
and disclosures of the consolidated financial
statements.

¢ In the obsence of o detoiled impoct assess-
maent, performed gudit procedures to ossess if
sufficient oppropdate gudit evidence con be
obtaoined to assess the potential impoct of the
glfects of omissions on the stotement of
finoncial position of the Group as of 31 Decem-
ber 2023 and its financial perfformaonce for the
ended 3! December 2023 and for its core-
sponding retrospective prior periods.

® With the given significont limitations, we have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence o provide a basis lor an oudit
apinion on these consclidated financial
stotements. As such, we had concluded to
issue a "Disclaimer of Opinion*® on the
consolidated financial statements of the
Group lor the yeor ended 3| December 2023




Fiji m!uuem FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT [CONT'D]
To the Shareholders of FijiCare Insurance Limited (Cont'd)

Other Informaotion

The management and directors are responsible for the other information. The other infermation that
we recelved comprise of the information included in the directors report and the Annual Report of
the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2023 bul does not include the consolidated
financial statements and the auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is sexpected to be mads
‘available to us ofter the date of the auditor's report.

Qur opinion on the consolidated linancial statements does not cover the other infarmation and we
do not exprass any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidatad tinancial statements, our responsibility is to raad
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
tha audit, or otharwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based upon the work we have
parfermed we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibiiities of the Management and Those i:hnrgl with Governance for the Consolidoted
Financial Statements

The managemaent and directors are respansible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated tinancial statements in accordance with IFRS and the Companies Act 2015, and for such
internal control as the management and directors determine is necessory to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial stataments that are free from motarial misstatemeant, whether due to froud
ar arror.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the management and directors are responsible
lor nuuuuln? the Group's ability to continug as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
ralated to ?c} ng concern and uﬂn? the going concern basis of accounting uniess the managemant and
diractora either intend to liguidata

alternative but to do so.

he Company in the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
Those charged with govermance are responsible for cversesing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Conselidated Financial Statements

Qur abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abaut whether the consolidated financiol statermants
o o whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an ouditor's
report that includes our opinion. However, because of the matters described in the "Basis for Disclalmer
of Opinion’ section of Gur repart, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriote oudit evigence to
provide o basis tor an audit apinion on thase consolidated financiol statemants.

We communicate with these charged with governance r-agardbr?, among other matters, the plonned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deliciencies in
internal contral that we identity during eur auddit,

We also provide those charged with governance with o statement that we have complied with relevont
athlcal reguirernents regarding Independence, and to communicate with them oll relationships ond
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and whare opplicable,
related saleqguards,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT [CONTD]
To the Shareholders of FijiCare Insurance Limited (Cont'd)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those motters
that were of mest significance in the audit of the conselidated financial statements of the current
peried and are therefore the key audit matters.

We deseribe these matters in our guditor's report uniess low or regulation preciudes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we detarmine that a mottar should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse conseqguences of doing so would reasanabily be
axpacted to outweigh the public interest benetits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

IFRS 17 = Insurance Contracts and IFRS - 8 Financial Instruments are mandataorily effective for tha
Group for periods beginning an or after 1 January 2023 with o retrospective applicotion to the
corresponding periods ended 31 Dacember 2022 and 3] December 2021. However, the Group has
notl adopted these standards os the Group is still in the design phase of the transition of these standards.

The Group has continued to maintain the books of account as per the accounting policies in line with
the requirerneants of IFRS 4 - Insurance Controcts (superseded standard relating to Insurance Contracts)
far the year ended 31 December 2023,

Excapt for non-adoption of IFRS 17 - Insurance Cantracts and IFRS - 8 Financial Instrumants, in our opinion,
the consolidated financiol statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2015 in all material respects, and:

a) we have been given all infarmation, explanations and assistance necessary lor the conduct of
the audit, and

h) the Group have kept financlal recards sufficiant to enable the consolidated financial statemants
to be prepared and audited,

ZP<>

BDO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

/A

Pradeap Patel
Partner

Suva, Fijl

28 Mareh 2024
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M#FijiCare

FLJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPAMIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Incurred claims (35,858,679) (33,8239686)
Other direct cost - medical (681,908) (249,402)
Commission expense 6 (4.633,913) (4.007.417)
Net revenue 8.990.545 10,277,888
Othar revenua 7 837241 2574834
7.8327.786 12852722
Advertising and promation expenses (451.623) (568.808)
Other opearating expenses (s,681,013) (5.358,591)
(6132636)  (5.925397)
Income tax expanse 8la) (443.831) (993,588)
ftarma that may be reclassitied subsequently to profit or
1o
Exchange difference on transiating fareign operation 43,038 (1s2,019)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1.384,357 5,781,740
Earnings per share
Basle and diluted sarnings per share - cents 22 15.70 6894

Tha aeaampanying notes latm an integilal part af this consolidated stoternant of profil o loas ond other

corprehengive incoma
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Share Foreign Accumulated
Capital Currency Profits
Translation
Reserve |
$ |
Balance as at | January 2022 5043862 (28,191) 16,908,233 21,923,704
Total col nsive income

Profit for the year - - 5,933,758 5,833,759

Gther comprehensive income for the year:
- Exchange difference on transioting foreign operation = (152,019) = (152,018)

ve income . (152.019) 5933759 5781740

Transactions with owners of the Group

Dividends declared (Note 19) = = (860,769) (8e0,789)
Total transactions with owners of the Group = - (880,769) (880,780)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 5,043,662 21,981,223 26,844,675
?5 JE—
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INSLRANCE LIMETED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Share Foreign Accumuloted
Capital Currency Profits
Translation
Reserve
$
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year = _ 1351319 1,351,319
Other comprehansive income for the year:
- Exchange difference on translating foreign operation " 43,038 - 43,038

Transactions with owners of the Group

Dividends declared (Note19) ~ - (1,463,318) (1.463318)
Total transactions with owners of the Group = - (1,463.316) (1,463.318)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 5,043,662 (137,172) 21,869,226 26,775,716

The accompanying notes torm an integral port of this consolidated statement of chonges in equity.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 3] DECEMBER 2023

Mates 2023 022
s s

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash on hand and at bank N 18.224 BO1 18,07.301
Trade and other receivables g 13,108,059 14,205,445
Inventory 10,288 B.787
Held-to-maturity investments 10(a) 10,888,427 10,277,804
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 16(b) 3,850,M2 3,659,287
Deferrad costs n 2450mM 1,964,708
Current tox asset 8(b) 474,572 =
Total current assets 48,813,570 46,191,332
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other recaivables g - 19,288
Hald-to-maturity investments 10(a) 2,616,000 2,495,122
Investmeant properties 12 1,865,266 10,600.998
Flant and eguipment 13 1,226,288 984,732
Intangible assats 14 446,753 444,988
Right-of-use assets 23(a) 697,755 1,032,354
Daferrad tox assets gi(c) 45,646 38.26)
Total non-current assets 16,899,708 15,825,843
TOTAL ASSETS 65.713.678 62.017.175
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 15 2,217,321 2141278
Current tax llability 8(b) - n272
Insurance contract liabilities 16 34,897 884 30,961,792
Employea antitlements 1”7 206572 206,284
Lease liabilities 23(b) 194,781 329 144
Total current labilities 37,616,558 33,749,768
NOMN=CURRENT LIABILITIES
Locse labliities 23(b) E34.8580 733,188
Deferred tox liabilities 8(d) 586,854 889,544
Total nan=current liabilities 1,421,404 1,422,732
TOTAL LIABILITIES Il.il?.ili 35,172,500 |
NET ASSETS 26,775,716  26,844675
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital I8 5,043,862 5,043,662
Farsign currency translation reserve (132.172) (180.210)
Accumuloted profits 21,869,226 219861223
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 26,778,186 26,844675

Tha accorm nnzlng notes form an integral port of this consolidated statement of linancial position.
For and on bahait of the Board and In accardance with o resolution of the Board of Directors.

J.jpﬁ

Diractor Director
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INSURASCE LIMITED

FIJICARE INSURAMNCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Premium and feas recaived
Reinsurance premium paid, net
Claims and cammission paid, net
Payments to suppliers and employees

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Tox deductad at source - Resident Interest Withholding Tax
Interast paid on leasa liabilities

Interast recelved

Grant received

Net cash provided by aperating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Faymant for investmant properties
Faymeants lor property, plant and aquipgment
Paymaents for intangible assets

Paymaents for hald-to-maturity iInvestmants
Proceeds from held- to>maturity investrments
Dividends recalved

Paymant for purchase of shares

Net cash used In Investing activities

Cash flows from financing octivities

Dividends pald
Fayment for laase llability

Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Ettact of mxchange rate movemant on cash and cash equivalants

Cash and cosh equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 21)

inflowsf

[Outfiows)
Translation

2023
S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Inflows [
(Outfiows)

Translation

2022
5

52967255 47,768,398
(854,600) (s82.072)
(41.086,757) (34.090.878)
ig_,a_;ﬂ_g.ﬂ] (5£|1,¢93}
6,779,806 8,074,857
(824,758) (s11,652)
(14.992) {33.6986)
(38.825) {(52.120)
295,381 407,440
- 133,955
6,196 412 8.018,884
(827.777) (3143 .328)
(s09.818) (194.92)
(318.18) (239,890)
{(10,956,552) (9.397,797)
10,227,804 10,277,804
96,363 58,179
(13.458) (8.507)
(2.298,354) {2.&45&@ ti
(1.483.318) (860,769)
(3%0.048) (279.411)
(1L814,284) {1,140.180)
2,085,794 4,230,444
87,708 (232.857)
16,071,301 12,073 514
18,224,801 16,071,301

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this consolidated statement of cash flows.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 1. GENERAL INFORMATION
a) Corporate Information

Fijicare Insurance Limited (the Holding Company) is a licensed general insurance and publicly listed
company en South Pacific Stock Exchange (spx), limited by shares. incorporated and domiciled in Fiji
The subsidiary companies, Wecare Pie Limited ond Omnicore Pte Limited are imited by shares.
incorporated and domiciled in Fiji and Vancare Pte Limited is limited by shares, incorporoted and
domiciled in Vanuatu.

The registered office and principol place of business of the Holding Company is located ot Level 8, FNPF
Flace, 343-358 Victoria Paradea, Suva.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Beard of Directors and authorised for issue
on 28 March 2024,

h]' Principal Activities
The principle activitias of the Group during the year were as follows:

Emtity Prmcipal Activitias

Fiiicare Insurance Limitad Underwriting of medical, term life, martgoge protection, wogecare,
i personal accident, public liabliity, tuneral benefits, motor vehicie,
paramaetric climatetravel and property (under micro insurance

project) insurance risks.

VanCare insurance Limited Underwriting of motor and other general insurance risks.
WecCare Pte Limited Investmant in properies and real estate.
omniCare Pte Limited Mecdlical and Diagnostic Centre.

Thare were no significant changes in the nature of the principal octivities of the Group during the yeur.

NOTE 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
a) Basis of Preparation

The consalidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for certain financial asseats at fair values. Histaricol cost is based on the fair values of the consiceration
given In exchange for goods and services.

In the application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), management s required to moke
judgmaents, estimates and assumptions about carrying values of ossets ond habilities thot are not ¢
apparant from other sources. The estimates ond ossociated assumptions are bosed on historical
axparience and various other factors that are belisved to be reasonable under the circumstance, the
rasults of which lorm the basls of making the judgments. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and unﬂuﬂyinﬁ;lsumpuum are reviewod on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
astimates are re sad In the pariod In which the astimate is rev it the revision affects that
pariod, or In'the pariod of the revision and future periods il the revision alfects both current and future
parlods. Judgmaents made by managemant in the opplication of IFRS that have significant effects on the
connolidated linancial stataments and estimates with o significant risk of material adjustments in the nest
year are disclosed, whare opplicable, In the relevant notes to the consolidated linanclal statements

Accounting policies are selected and applied in o manner which ensures that the resulting financial
infarmation satisties the concapts of relevance and rellability, thereby ansuring that the substance of the
undarlylng transactions or othar events s reported.

The areas Involving higher degree of judgmaent or complaxity, or areas whaere assumptions ond estimates
ara eritical e the consolidated linanclal statemants are disclosed in Note 4
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AN AN N LT ED

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [cuur'u]'
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)
b) statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2015, except for the Group not adopting IFRS 17 - Insurance Controcts
and IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments,

The Companies Act (of Fi rE reguires the companies in the Group to comply with the Accountin
standards adopted by the Fijl institute of Chartered Accountants (FICA). FICA hos IFRS Os uu«aﬂ
by the International Accounting Standards Beard. IFRS 17 became mandatorily effective lor annual
reporting period beginning on or after | January 2023,

However, with no local resources available to assist in implementation and resources gvailoble outside
of Fiji was sparse during 2023, it was impracticable for the Group to a%ﬂ;rt IFRS 17 eificiently and
affectively, and it was apparent that IFRS 17 ementation will require substantiol human, technoicgical
cind financial resources.

Furthermore, Reserve Bank of Fiji (RBF) has announced that licensed insurars In Fiji wil be required
chr Implarir%%gt IFRS 17 and reflect these in their prudential reporting from financial period beginning 1
anuary i

Tha Group s yet to adopt IFRS 17 and the Group has continued to maintain the books of Is as per
the accounting policies in line with the requirements of IFRS 4 - Insurance Controcts (superseded
standard relating to Insurance Contracts). IFRS 17 also provided temporary axemption from adoption of
IFRS & - Financial Instruments.

¢) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the consalidated financlal statements of the Holding
Enmpany and its subsidiary companias which are listed in Note 26. Control is achieved when the Holding
ompany:

® hog power over the investee;
@ in axposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvermant with the investes; and

® hag the ability to use its power to affect its returns,

The Holding Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee il facts and circumstances
indlcate that there are changes to one or more of the three elemants of control listed above.

Whaen the Holding Cﬂmpunr has less than a mi]::r'rty of the voting rights of an investae, it has Rgnn ovar
the Investee when the voting rights are sulficient to give it the practical abllity to direct the relevant
dctivities of the Investee unilaterolly. The Huldi‘r;g Company considers all relevant facts and
cirgumstances in assessing whether or not the Holding Company’s voting rights in an investee are
autliclant to give it power, iIncluding:

® the size of the Holding Company's halding of voting rights reiative to the size ond dispersion of
holcings of other vmg holcisrs; 4 ¢ @ figh

e patential voting rights held by the Holding Company, other vote holders or other parties;
e rights arlsing from other contractual arrangements; and
e any additional fcf;u and clreumstances that indicate that the Holding Company has, or does not

have current obility to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
Including vating patterns at previous sharehalders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiory begins when the Holding Company abtaing control over the subsidiary
companies and censes when the Holding Company loses control of the subsidiary companies.

Incame and axpenses of the subsidiary companies are included in the consolidated statemant of tor
logs and other comprehensive income from the date the Holding Company gains control until the date
when the Holding Company caases to cantrol subsidiary

Profit ar loas and sach componant of other camprehansdive income are attributable to the ownars of the

Holding Comparny. W
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IRSUBANLE LIMETED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)
¢) Basis of Consolidation (Cont'd)

All inter-company balances and transactions between the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies including any recognised profits or losses have been eliminated on consalidation.

d) Functional and Presentation Currency
Functional and prasentation currency

The Group operatas in Fiji ond Vanuotu, however the consolidated financiol stotements are presented
in Fiji dellars, which is the Holding Compony's functional and presentation currency.

@) Basis of Accounting - Going Concern

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on o going concem basis. The
directors consider the application of the going concarn principle to be appropriata in the preparotion
of these consolidated linancial statemeants as they believe that the Group has adeqguate funds to meet
its llablities os and when they fall due over the next twelve months.

f) Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been re-grouped to conform to changes in presentation
in the current périod.,

g) Changes in Accounting Policles
A. New standards, amendments and interpretation effective during the year
The fallowing amendmants are allective lor the pariod beginning | January 2023

o Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendmants to IAS | and IFRS Practice Statement 2);

® Delinition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to 1AS 8),

e Defarred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transoction (Amendments
to IAS 12); and

® |FRS 17 Insurance Contracts and IFRS 9 financial instruments.

(1) Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS | and IFRS Practice Statement 2)

In Fabruary 2021, the IASE lssued amendmants to IAS | and IFRS Proctice Statament 2. The amendments
alm to make accounting policy disciosuras mare informative by replacing the requiremeant to disclose
significant accounting policies’ with ‘material accounting policy information’. The amendmaents alsc
provide guildance under what clreumsiance, the aocounting policy information is likely 1o be considered
material and therefore requiring disclosure

These omendments have no material effect on the measurement or presentation of any items in the
finenclal statements of the Group but alfect the disclosure of accounting policies of the Group

(Il) Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)

The amendments to IAS B, which added the definition of accounting estimates, clorify that the elfects of
a change in an input or measuremant technique are changes in accounting estimates, unless resulting
from the correction of prior pariod errors. These omendmants clarity how antities make the distinction
between changes In accounting sdtimate, changes in dccounting policy and prior period amrors

These amendmants had no effect on the linancial statamaents of thae Group.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)
g) Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
A, New standards, amendments and interpretation effective during the year (cont'd)

(iii) Defarmd}Tm Related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction {Amendments
to IAS 12

In May 2021, the |ASB issusd amendments to 1AS 12, which clarify whather the initial recognition
exemption applies to certain traonsactions that result in both an asset and a liability
recognised simultaneously (e.g a lease in the scope of IFRS 18). The amendments introduce an
additional criterion for the initial recognition exemption, whereby the exemplion does not
apply to the initial recognition of an asset or liability which ot the time of the transoction, gives
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary diferences.

These armendments had no effect on the annual financial statements of the Group.
(iv) IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 was issued by the IASB In 2017 and replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Controcts for annual
reporting period beginning on or after | January 2023, However, the Group has not yet adopted
IFRS 17 for the financial year ended 31 December 2023,

IFRS 17 introduces an internationally consistent approach for the recognition, measuremeant,
and presentation of disclosure of insurance controcts issued. IFRS 17 requires o complete
ovarhaul of insurars’ financial statements. This major change program to implement IFRS 17
will axtand bayond the finance and actuarial functions of insurers — with a large Impact across
Data, Systems and Processes SESP}. The business impocts need to be evaluated and
communicated to a wide range of intermal and external stakeholders. The Standard uses three
meagsuremaent approaches:

» General Model (GM)
® Pramium Allocation Appraach (PAA)
e Varluble Fee Approach (VFA).

PFresentation and disclosure

IFRS 17 also Introduces significant changes to the presentation of insurance controcts Assets
and llabllities related to portfolios of insurance contracts ond reinsurance controcts are
required to be shown separately on the balonce sheet. In tha statement of comprehensive
income, the Oroup Is required to present income and expaenses related to insurance controcts
gross of reinsurance,

In addition, linance iIncoma or sxpanse associated with insurance contracts will not be included
in Insurance sarvice result, and will be recognised separately as insurance finance incoma or
expanse. IFRS 17 parmits entities to recognise o component ol finance income or expanse in
@ither profit or loss or othor comprehendiva incoma.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)
@)  Changes in Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
A.  New standards, amendments and interpretation effective during the year (cont'd)
(iv)  IFRS17 Insurance Contracts (cont'd)
Transition

IFRS 17 aims to establish globally consistent principies for the recognition, measwament and
presentation of disclosura of insuronce controcts issued. The stondard is not expected to
change the underlying econamics or cash fiows of the Group's insurance controcts and
reinsurance controcts held, however it is expected to introduce changes to profit

and retained earnings on adoption of the standard along with extensive new discliosure
requirements,

The possible impact of IFRS 17 and consequential impact of IFRS 8 could be material and
pervasive on the Group Impuctln? signiticant number of financial statement oreas, balances
and disclosures. The Group is still in the design phase of the transition of these stondards.

In the absance of a detailed impact assessmant, it is impractical at this st to assess and
1:,uant1h- tha atfects of the stndard on the statement of financial position of the Group ﬂﬂd_itt
f nulgclul performance and disclosures, and elfects for its corresponding retrospective prior
periods

(v)  IFRS 8 Financial instrumeants

In relation to Insurars, o specific "temporary exemption” from the applicotion of IFRS 9 is
avallable *wheare an Insurer's activities are predominantly connected with insurance”. The
Insurer may continue to apply IAS 39 rother than IFRS 9 lor annual pariods up until the period
commancing 1 January 2023 when the new insurance industry standard IFRS 17 “Insurance
Contracts” became applicable. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces 1AS 39 - Financial
Instrumants: Recognition and Measuramant. However, the Group has not adopted IFRS 9 as the
Group is yet to adopt IFRS 17.

B New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective

There are o numbaer of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been
lssued by the IASE that are elfective in luture accounting periods that the Group has decided not to
adopt eoarly,

Tha tollowing amendmaents are etfective for the period beginning | January 2024:

o Labllity in o Sale and Leaseback (Armendment ta IFRS 16 Leases);
e Classification of Liabilities os Current ar Non-current (Amendments to IAS | Presentotion ol
Financlal Statemaents),

e Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to 1AS | Presentation of Financiol
Statements); and

e Supplier Finance Arrangermants iﬁmlndmentl to IAS 7 Statemant of Cash Flows and IFRS 7
Financial instruments: Disclosures ).

Tha Group (8 currantly assessing the impact of these new accounting standards and amendmants.
The Group does not expect any other standards lssued by the IASE, but not yat effective, to have a

matetial impact.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTD]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statemeants are sat out below, Thase policias hove been consistantly applied to all the ysars
presented, unless otherwise stated,

a) Allowance for Doubtful Debts

The Group establishes an allowance for any doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding
amounts individually at year end. Bad debls are written off during the period whan they are
identified.

The Group periodically assesses whether there is any objective evidence of impoirment. Trode and
other receivables are presented net of allowances for doubtful debts. The Group has individually
assessed allowonces against individually significant trade and other receivables

b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivaiants comprisa cash on hand.cash
in banks and other short term highly liquid investmants that are readily convertible te a known
amaount of cash and are subject to an insigniticant risk of changas in value.

¢) Dividend Distribution

The dividend distribution to the Holding Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in
consolidated financial statements in the period in which the dividends are declared by the directors

d) Earnings Per Share
Basic eamings per share

The basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing profit or loss alter income tax
attributable to members of the Hoiding Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings par share

Dhuted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributoble to
otdinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average numbar of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that wauld be
lssuad on the conversion of all the dilutive patantial ordinary shares into ordinary shares

o) Expenditure Recognition

Expensas cre racognised in the profit or loss on the bosis of a diract association between the cost
Incurred and the sarning of spacitic items of incame. All expenditure incurred in the running of the
business and In mointaining the investment gmpnﬂlﬂ and property, plant and equipment in a stote
of sparational service has basn eharged to the statamants of profit or loas

Fort the purpose of presentation of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive incomae, the “function ol expenses” method has been adopted, on the basis that it
fairly prasents the elements of the Group’s performance.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTD]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

f) Financial Assets

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group classifies its financial assets in the Enllawin%cutagoriw: loans and receivables. held-to—
maturity investments and financial assets at fair value through prefit or loss. The classification
deE.enc_is on the nature mq_%:—pme for which the finoncial assets were acquired ond is determined
at the time of initial recognit

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non~darivative financial assets with fixed or determinable meants that
are not quoted in an active market, They are included in current assets, except for urities greater
than 12 months after balance date, which are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans
and receivables co ﬁfﬁ_ﬁﬂ ‘trade and other receivables” as disclosed in the consolidated statement
of tinancial pﬂﬂitfﬂﬁnz ote ). Bod debts are written off during the period in which they are identified

Trade receivables, loans, and other recaivables ore recorded ot amortised cost less impairment.
Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-dearivative financial assets with fixed or detarminable
payments and fixed maturity dates that the Group has the positive intention and abllity to hold to
rnaturity. ﬁubs-?uanl to Initiol recognition, held-to-moturity iInvestments are corried ot amaortised
cost using the effective interest method less any impairment.

Held-to-maturity investments in commercial bonks and financial institutions by the Group are
racorded at their amortized cost and not re-maasured to market valuas as they are considered likely to
be held to maturity in line with investment aobjectives and lixed price nature af the investments.

Financlal ossets at falr value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprises equily investments in listed and
unlisted companies.

Financial asaets at falr value through profit or loss has two sub-cat rias: fimonciol aossats heid for
trading, and those designated at fair value lhmu?h rofit or loss at inception. A financiol osset is
classifiad as held for trading If it |8 acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Financlal assets designated at fair volue through profit or loss at inception are those thot are
managed and thair pgrfnfmaneu ate evoluated on a fair value basis. Assats in this category are
F}IHI?]:I ed as current gssets I they are either held lor trading or are expected to be realised within 12
months.

Financial assets at fair value IhrnuPh profit or loss are measured initially and subsequently at fair
miiua. and gains and losses arising from changes in falr value are included in the statement of profit
or laas,

Transaction costs are recognised In the statement of profit or loss. Dividend income is recognised in
the consolidated statament of prolit or loss as part of other revenus when the Holding Company's
right to recealve paymants is astablished.

q] Foreign Currency Translations
Transactions and balances

All tareign currancy transactions during the financial year are brought to aacount using the exc

rate in elfect ot the dote of the tronsaction, Foreign currency monetary items ot reporting dote are
translated ol the exchange rate axisting at reporting dote. Non-mone assets ond kabilities carried
at lalr value that are denorminated in lareign currencies are transiated at the rates prevalling
at the date when tha falr value was determined. Exchange differences are recognised in the profit or
loss In the period in which thay arlse

Foreign controlled entity

Ag thae forelgn controlled lubnidiurﬁ company of the Group, VanCare Insurance Limited, is a sell-
sustaining entity, ts assets ond liabilities are transiated to Fiji dollar at the average year-end buy)

and selllng exchange rates, while its revenues and expenses are transiated at the average monthiy
amhun?u rote of buyingl and selling prevailing rate during the year. Exchange differences arising on
tranglation are token to the foraign currency transiation réesernve. @
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ANEUMANA K LIMEFBD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
h) Impairment of Non-Financial assets

At egch reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. if
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recovergble amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-genarating unit to
which the osset belongs. '

Intangible assets with indelinite useful lives and intongible assels nol yel available for use are tested
for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sall and value in use. In uﬂ%
in ugs, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax t
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates ol future cash Hiows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimoted to be less than its carnrying
amount; the carrying ameount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount, Al impairment loas is recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the Impairment loss is treated as o revaluation decraase.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-

enercting unit is increased to the revised estimote of its recoverable amount. but so thot the
ncreased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would hove been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-ganerating unit in prior years, A
revarsal of an impairmaent loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevont asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated os 0
revaluation Increasa.

i)  Income Tax
Current tox

The current iIncome tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tox laws enacted or substantively
enacted ol the balance date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax reguiotions ore subject to iInterpretation ond estoblishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expecled (o be poid o the tax authorities.

Deferrad tax

Delarred tax Is accounted lor using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising from ditterences betweaen the carrying omount of assets ond liabilities in the
consolidated financial statemants and the corresponding tax base of those items.

In principle, deterred tax liabllities ore recognised for oll taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
ansots are rmo‘?nmuﬂ to the extant that it is probabla that sufticient toxablé amounts will be available
agalnst which deductible temporary ditferences or unused tax losses ond tax offsets con be utiiised
However, deferrad tax assets and liabliities are not recognised it the temporary difterences giving rise
to them arise from the Initlal recognition of assets and llabilities (other than os o result of o business
sombination) which affects reither taxable income nor accounting profit

Deterred tox assats and liabilities are measured ot the tax rates thot are expected to apply to the
periods whaen the asset and liabllity giving rise to them are recognised or settled, based on tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by r-porlln? date. The measurement
of detarred tax llabllities ond assets reflacts the tax consaquances that would lallow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the reporting dote, to recover or settie the carrying amount of its
assets and llakilities,

Currant and deferred tax for the period

Current and delerred tox ls recognised as an axpense or income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss except when It relatés to items crediled or debited directly Lo equity. in which case the

tleferred tox s also recognised directly In aquity @
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD)

|) mmsurance Contracts (Cont'd)

General

All of the general insurance products and reinsurance products on offer, or utilised. meet the
definition of an insurance contract (a contract under which ane party, the insurer, accepts significant
insurance risk from another party, the policyholder, by agreeing to compensate tha policyholder if o
specified uncertain future event, the insured event, adversely affects the policyhoider) and none of
the contracts contain embedded derivatives or are required to be unbundied. insuronce contracts
that meet the definition of o financial guorantee coritract are gecounted for as insurance contracts.
This means that all of the general insurance products are accounted for in the same manner.

i) Premium Income

Premium revenue comprises amounts charged o policyholders (direct premium) for insurance
contracts. Premium is recegnised as earned on o proporticnate basis over the period for which cover
is provided using the 365 days pro-rata method.

The unearned portion of premium is recognised as an unearned premium ligbility on the stotement of
financial position.

i) Reinsurance

Contracts entared into by the Group with Reinsurers under which the Group is compeansated for losses
on one or more contracts jssued by the Group, are clossified as reinsurance controcts:

As the reinsurance ogreements pravide for indemnification by the Reinsurers agoinst loss of lability,
ya&nsumnca Income and expensas are recognisad separately in the statement of comprehensive
income when they become due and payable in accordance with the reinsurance agreements.

Reinsurance recoveries are recognised as claim recoverias under the statemeant of comprehansive
income. This is natted off against the claim expenses Reinsurance pramiums ara recognised os
Reinsurance Expenses on a proportionota basis over the period for which cover is provided.

Accordingly, a partion af reinsurance pramium axpense s deferred and presented as deferred
reinsurance expensas on the consolidated statement of tinancial position at the reporting date.

1)} Deferred commission costs

Commission cost paid to agents and brokers associated with ebtaining general insurance contracts
are referred to as acoulsition cost.

These costs are presented as deferred commission costs and are omortised and charged to
gxpenses on the same basis os the recognition of premium incomea. The balance of the delerred
commission costs at the reporting date reprosants the commigsion costs relating to unearned
pramium.

fv)  Pravision for outstanding clalims

Pravision for outstanding claims are stated net of amounts recoverable lrom reinsurers and are
assessed by reviewin ?ndiuiduul claims. Provision is ossessed after taking into account claim
information avallable at the tima the claim is received or additional information brought to the notice
ot this Ernu? till reporting date. Whilst all reagonable steps are taken to ensure that adequate
infermation ls obtained, given the uncertainty in claimas provision, it is likely that the final outcome will
differ from the ariginal llabllity established.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2023

NOTE 3, SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

j) Insurance Contracts (Cont'd)
iv)  Provision for outstanding claims (cont'd)

Provision is also made for insurarice claims incurred but not reported (IBNR). Provision for IBNR
is also assessed by the managemen! on an annual basis based on the latest ovailable
actuarial valuation report and recent claims experience and underwriting results. Voluation is
obtained from independent licensed actuaries for the adequacy of provision for claims
incurred but not reported on a periodic basis. Actuaries use appropriate actuarial valuation
methods te value the liabilities to help inform the choice of the most appropriate method and
to help ossess the inharent estimation differences. Actuaries selected the method that gave
the higher answer based an the Group's own data and increasad where the benchmark gave
a higher answer gnd weighted the valuation towards higher side.

Pravision Is also made for claim administration axpenses in accordaonce with guidelines
issuad by Reserve Bank of Fiji.

Claims expenses represent claim payments adjusted for the movement in the outstanding
claims liability.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

k) Intangible Assets

Computer software s recorded ot cost less occumuioted amortisation and any impoairment losses.
Amortigsation is charged on o stroight line basis over their estimatad useful lives at o rote of 40% The
estimated useful lite and amaortisation method is reviewead at the end of aach financial yaar. The
um?rtisc:th:-n aexpense (s Included under other operating expense in the consolidated statemant of
profit or loss,

1) Inventories

Inventories consist of medical supplies and consumables. Inventories are stotad at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the First In and First Out principle and
includes expanditure incurred in agquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location
and condition, Net realisable value Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses

m) Investment Properties

Investmaent properties principally comprising land and bulldings are haid to earn rantals and/or tor
capital appreciatian, are measured initially ot its cost including transaction costs

investment properties are stated in the consolidated statemant of financial position ot thelr revalued
amounts, being the tair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent impairment losses.
Revaluations are parformed with sulliclent regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ
materially from those that would be detarminad using fair values ot the and of sach reporting period

n) Leases

At incoption of a contract, the Group assesses whaether a contract is, of containg, o lease. A contract
I8, or contains, a lease |f the contract conveys tha right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exgchonge lor consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
cantrol the use of an identified asset, the Group ossesses whether:

e the contract involves the use ol an identitied agset - this may be ;?lcilhd explicitly or
impllcltir. and should be phzneicnlly distinct or represent substantially all of the capocity of o
physically distinet assat. if the supplier hos o substontive substitution right, then tha asset is
not identitied;

® the Group had the right to obtaln substantially all of the economic benalits from use of the
agsel throughout the period of use; and

e the Group hay the right to direct the use of the asset, The Group has this right when it hos the
declslon-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for whot purpose the
cissat s used. In rare coses whare the decision about how and lar what purpose the asset is
used is predetermined, the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset il either;

“the Group has the right to operate the asset; or
“the Group designed the asset in o way that predetermines how and for whaot purpose it

will be used. @
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT™D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
n) Leases (Cont'd)

At inception or an reassessment of a contract that contagins a ieose component, the Group oliocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Group has elected not
tc separate non-lease components and acceunt for the lease and non-lease components as a
singie lease component.

Policy applicable as a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liobility ot the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initiolly measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any legse payments made at or before the commencement dote. plus any
inltial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to distnantie and remove the underlying asset
or ta restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received,

The right-of-use asset is subsequently deprecioted using the stroight-line method from the
commaeancement dote to the earlier of the end of the useful lite of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lgase term. The astimated useful lives of right-of-use assets ore determined on the same
basis as those of property and aquipmant. In addition, the right-of -use asset is periodicolly reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measuremeants of the lease lability.

The lease liability is initially medasured at the present value of the lease paymenits thot ore not paid
at the commaencement date, discounted using the interast rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group's incremeantal borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease paymants included in the measuramaent of the lease liability comprise the following:

® lixed payments, including in-substance lixed payments;

e varlable lease payments that depend on an Index or o rate, initially meosured using
the Index or rate as at the commancemant date;

® amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, and

e the exarcise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably cenain to ssercise,
lease paymants in an optional renewal pariod It the Group is reasonably certain to exarcise on
extansion option, and penalties for early termination of a lease uniess the Group s reasonably
cartaln not to tarminate aarly,

The leasa liabllity is measurad ot amortised cost using the effective intarast method. It is
re-measured when there s a change in luture lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, \f there |8 a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expectled to be Poyum under o
rasidual value guarantee, or if the Group changes Its assessment of whether it will exercise o
purchage, extension or tarmination option

When the lease liabllity s re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
nurrnflng amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded In profit or loss If the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has baen reduced to zero,

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Tha Group has alected not to racognise right-of-use assets and laase liabllities for short-term leases

that have a legse term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value ossets The Group
recognises the lease paymaents associated with these leoses as an expense on a straight-line basis

ovar the leaka tarm,
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n) Leases (Cont'd)
Policy applicable as a lessor

When the Group acts as g lessor, it determines at lease inception whether eoch leose is a finance
lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group mokes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially oll of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. if this is the
case, then the lease is a linance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As pant of this assessment,
the Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic
life-of the asset.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the heod lease and the
sub-lease separately. it asseszes the lease clossification of o sub-lease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset If o head
lease is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it
classifles the sub-lease as an operating lease.

it an arrangement contains lease and non-lease compaonénts, the Group applias IFRS 15 to allocate
the consideration in the contract.

Tha Group recognises lease paymants received under operating leases as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term os part of ‘other income”.

o) Segment Reporting
Cperating Segment

An pperating segment is a component of the Group which may earmn revenues and incur
and the oparating rasults are regularly reviewad by the Group’s chiel operating decision moker to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance.

Geogrophic Segrmant

A geogrophical segment constitutes the provision of products or services within a particular
economic environment that are subject to risks ond return that are different from those of segments
operating In other economic anviranments. The Group operates in Fiji and Vanuatu.

p) Mant and Equipment

Leasehold improvements, plant and equipment are stoted at historical cost less accumuloted
depraciation and impairmant loss. Historicol cost Includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition and installation of the tems.

Subseguent costs are Included In the assel's carrying amount or recognised os o separote ossel. os
appropriate, enly when it Is probable thot future sconomic benelits associated with the item will flow
to the Graup and the cost of tha itern can be maasurad reliobly. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is de-recognised, All other repairs and maintenonce are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit of loss during the financial period in which they are incurred,

Depreciation is provided on leasehold improvemants, plant and equipmeant. Depreciation is
caleulated on o straight-line bosis so as to write of! the net cost or othat revoalued amount of each
usget over ity expected uselul life to its estimated residual value. The estimated usetul lives, residual
values and depreciation mathod s reviewad at the end of each annual reporting period
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTD]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

p) Plant and Equipment (Cont'd)

Depraciation on assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimoted useiul lives using the
following rates:

Leasehold improvemeants 25%
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 10% - 40%
Motor vehicles 20°%

An asset's carrying amount is writteén down immediately to its recoverable amount if the osset’s
carrying amount is greater than its astimatad recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceads with the carnrying amount
and are taken into account in determining the results for the year.

q} Provision for Employee Entitiements
Wages and saolaries

tiabilitles for wages and salaries expectad to be settled within 12 months of the reporting dote are
accrued up to the reporting date.

Annual leave

The liability for annual leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. Liobilities for annual
leave are expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date and are measured ot their
nominal values using the remuneration rate expacted to apply at the time of sattlemant.

Bonus plans

The Group pays bonuses to employees based on performance of the Group ond achievemant of
Individual objectives by the amployees. The Group accrues bonuses where controctuaily obliged or
whire there is a past practice, subject to performance evaluation.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to Fiji National Provident Fund ore expensed when incurred.

r)  Provisions

Pravigions ore recognised when the Group has o present legal or constructive obligation os o result of
past events, it is probable that an outfiow ol resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amaunt has bean raliobly astimated. Provisions are not recognised for future oparating losses
Where there are o numbaer ol similar obligotions, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
sattlement ls determined by considering the class of obligations as o whole, :dpwouiuiﬁn is recognised

oven if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same closs of
obligations may be small,

Provislons are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the

obligation using o Fra- tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks spacific to the obligation
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
s) Reinsurance Contracts

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for most categories of its insurance
policies. _Racqvaruh:ia_ amounts are estimated in .0 manner consistent with the cutstanding claims
provision ﬂl"‘tﬂfﬁf reinsurance contract terms,

Ceded reinsuronce arrangements do not relieve the Grﬂup trom its obligation to policyholders.
t) Finance Income and Finance Costs
The Group's tinance income and tinance costs include:

® interest income on advances;

® interest expense on lease liabllities;

®* bank charges; and

¢ impairment losses (and reversals) on investments.

Interast incorme or a?&nse is recognised using the effective interést mathod. The ‘effective interast
rate’ is the rate that discounts estimated future cash paymants or recaipts through tha axpected life
of the financial instrument to

e the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
® the amortised cost of the financial lability.

In ealculating interest income and expense, the affective interest rate is applied to the gross corrying
amount of the osset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is colculated by applying the effective interast rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income
reverts Lo the gross basis.

u) Fair Value Measurement

'Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell on asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
tronsaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal market or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Group has access at that dote. The foir value
of a liabllity refiects its non-perfarmance risk.

When one is avallable, the Group measures the falr vaiue of an instrument using the quoted price in

an octive markat for that instrumant. A market s regarded as active it transactions for the asset or

gﬂblfll-ty take place with sutticlent frequency and valume to pravide pricing information on an ongoing
asls.

It thera is no quated price in an active market, then the Group uses valuation techniques that
rmaximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technigue incorporates all of the factors that morket participonts would take into
account In pricing a trangaction,

It an aeset or a llabllity meagsured ot tair value has a bld price and an ask prica, then the Group
measures assets and long positions at a bid price and liabllities and short positions ot an ask price.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on Initial recognition is normaolly the
transaation price - Le. the falr value of the consideration given or recaived. If the Group determines
that the talr value on initial recognition differs frorm the transaction price and the lair value is
evidenced nelther by o quoted price in an active market for an identical osset or liability nor based on
a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation 1o
the measuramant, than the financial Instrumant is initiolly measured ot lalr value, odjusted to dafer
the difference between the falr value on initial recognition and the transoction price. Subsequently,
that difference ls recognised in profit of loss on an appropriate basls over the life of the instrument but
no latar than whan the valuation is wholly supported by obsaervable market dota or the tronsaction is

cloned out.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT™D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

v) Revenue Recognition

The Group receives premium income from policyholders as compensation for underwriting insuronce
risks. The _Gr_cmlsu recagnises revenue at an amount thot reflscts the consideration 1o which it expects
to be entitlted in exchange for underwriting those insurance risks, using a five-step model for each
revenue stream as prescribed in IFRS 15. The five-step model is os follows:

- |dentification of the controct;

-Identification of separate performance obligations for each good or service,
-Determination of the transaction price;

-Allocation of the price to performance obligations; and

-Recognition of revenue.

Revenue recognition with respect to the Group's specific business activities are as follows:

(i) Premium revenue comprises amounts charged to policyholiders (direct &:ﬂﬁlﬂﬂ for
insurance contracts, Premium is recognised as earnad on o proportionate is over the
period tor which cover is provided using the 365 days pro-rata method. The uneamed
ﬁur’tic? ri:rl' pr?trtniurn is recognised as an unearned pramium liability on the statement of

nancial positon.

{if) Revenue from the medical centre is recognised upon the delivery of service o patients

(iii) Dividend incoma trom investments is recognised when the right to receive dividend is
establishad.

(iv)Rental income Is recognised on an accrual basis. Rental income represents income
earned from renting out of building space.

(v) 1ntur¢sé income is racagnised on a time-propartion basis using the effective interest
method,

w) Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classilied as equity. Incremental costs directly atiributable (o the issue of new
shares or options are shawn in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

x) Trade Receivables

Trade recelvables are rﬁ:&ﬁhlﬁﬂﬂ Fﬂiliﬂlly at fair value and subge uﬂﬂll‘( meéasured at omortised cost
uging the etfective interast methad, less allowance for doubtful debts. An ollowance for doubtful debts
of trade recelvables s astablished when there is objective avidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the arginal terms of the receivables.

Allowance s made on a specific debtar level Significant financial difficulties of the debtors and
default or d#llngucnc in payments are considered Indicators that a specilic debtor balance s
cssensed to be doubtiul, Doubtiul debts assessed ot a collective level is based on past sxperience
and data in relation to actual write-ofls.

Elimurquunlt racovaries of amaounts preéviously written off are credited in the consolidated stateément
af profit or logs.

Significant financial difficultios of the debtor, probobility that the debtor will enter bankruptey or
tinanclal re-organisation, and default or delinquency in paymaents are considersd indicators that a
specilic debtor balonce s assessed to be doubtiul.

The carrying amount of the agset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the
amoaunt af the lose Is racognised In the consolidated statemaent ol prolit or loss and othar
comprahengive Income within administration and operating expenses. When o trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
racoveries of amounts pravioualy written off are credited In the consolicdoted statement of prolit or

loss.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

y) Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables are recognised when the Group becomes obliged to make future payments
resulting from the purchase of goods and services.
Trade payables are racognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured ot amortised cost
using the effective interast method.
z) Value Added Tax (VAT
Revenues, expenses, ossets and liobilities are recognised net of the amount of Value Added Tax (VAT),
excapt:
i) Where the amount of VAT incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense; and
i) For trade receivables and trade poyables which are recognised inclusive of VAT.

The amount of VAT receverable Irom, or payable to, the toxation autherity is inciuded os parnt of
receivables or payablas.

The VAT component of cash flows arising from operating and investing activities which is recoverabie
from or payabile to, the taxation autharity is classified as operating cosh fliows.

NOTE 4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

In the application of the Group's occounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors ond
the managemaeant are reguired to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent fram other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on hisloricol experience ond other factors that are considered to
ba relevant. Actual results may difter from thase estimotas.

Estimates and judgments are cantinually evaluated and ore bosed on historicol experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events thaot are believed to be reasonabie under the
circumstances. Revisions to accounting astimotes are recognised in the period in which the astimats
is revised I the revision atfects anly that period or in the period of revision and future periods if the
revigion alfects both gurrent and fulure periods.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by delinition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumplions
that have a significant risk of causing material odjustment to the carrying omounts of assets ond
liabilities within the next financial yaar and in future have been disclosad under the following notes to
the consolidated financial statements:

Note 3(])(Iv) = Provision tar outstanding claims

Note 3(j)(iv) = Actuarial valuation = claims incurred but not reported

Note 3(u) - Fair value measurement of linancial assets and investmaent propertios
Note 3(x) - Impalrment of accounts recelvable

Nate 3(1) - Deterred tax assets and liabllities

NOTE §. REVENUE 2023 2022
5 S

Gross written premium 53,358,403 50,517,483
Relnsurance pramiurm (580,708) (558,058)
$2,777,605 49950425

Dalerred reinsurance, net movernaent 345,100 35,242
Unadrmed pramium, net moverment (4.956,750) (1.835904)
Totol revenuag, net 48,186,045 48,158,673
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTD]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MNOTE 6. COMMISSION EXPENSE 2023 20
-4 s
4633913 4.007.4817
Dividend Incomea 94732 63,860
Interest incoma 216.681 304,436
Rental Income NG 137 B7 BB7
Fair value loss on aquity investments (13.033) (103.177)
Fair valua gain on investment properties 161491 1,708,165
Grant income (a) 176 294,53
Unrealised exchange gain 7,680 S2.13
Miscelloneous income, net 353.377 141919

Total other revanus, nat 837241 2574834

(@) In prior yeor, the Holding Company and its subsidiary (VanCare insurance Limited) entered into o
grant agreamant with United Nations Capital Development Fund for receipt of grant relating to
Paramatric Chimata Projact, The Parameatric Climate Project is designed to provide immadiote
manetary ralief to those insured members who are covered under the scheme for loss of income
arising out of natural disasters such us cyclones and flooding.

NOTE 8. INCOME TAX

income Tax Rate

Income tax expensa tor the year ended 31 Dacember 2023 has bean computed using tox rate of 25%
(2022: 10%) for the Halding Company, 0% for the subsidiary company, VanCare insurance Limited and
25% (2022: 20%) tor remaining subsidiary companies. Deferred tax assets and labilities have been
computed using tax rate ol 25% for the Group (excluding VanCare Insurance Limited) with change in
tax rate effective from 2023 tax year.

a) Income tax expense

Tha prima lacie income tax payable an profit is reconciled to the income
tox expanse 0s follows:

Protit before income tax k795,150 5827325

Prima focle Income tax expense 414,196 68427

Tox affect of

Non-taxable Incorme (272.883) (s6.888)

Non-daductible axpansas and concesstons 26,243 10,318

Under provision ol Income and delerred tax in prior year 1522 37.939

Impaet of change in corporate tox rate from 20% to 25%

(2022 10% to 20%) on delerred taxes 160,704 187,59

Defarrad taxes on tax losses and tempaorary differances not

recognised 14,846 120,233

Income tax expense 44383 993,568

Income tax expense comprises movemaeant in:

Current tax llabilities 253908 474318

Deterred tax dssets (7,385) (77,994)

Dealwrred tax liability 197,310 §97244
44383 993,566

Annual Repart 2023 m



MFifiCare

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 8. INCOME TAX (CON'D) 2023 2022

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b) Current tax assets | (liabilities)
Movements during the year were as follows

Balance at the beginning of the year (m.272) (182.304)
Tax liahility far the eurrent year (253.908) (4742318)
Advance taxes pald during the year 824758 51,652
Tax daductad at source - resident Interaest withholding tax 14,992 33,696
Balance ot the end of the year 474572 (ma72)

c) Deferred tax assets

Detarred tax ossets comprise the estimoted future benefit ot future
income tax rate of 26% (2022 20%) in respect to the following:

Difference betwaen Right of Use Asset ond Laase Liabilities 5,007 433
Allewance for doubtful debits 12.500 10,000
Provision tor employes entitlements 28139 23.830
Total delarred tax assets 45,646 38.261

d) Deferred tax assets

Detarred tox liobilities comprise the estimated luture expense ot fulure
inceme tax of 25% (2022: 20%) rate in respect to the following

Difterence in cost base of investment proparties and plant and

aquipmant for accounting and income tax purposes 866,26 858,103
Unrealized gain on investment in unlisted shares 18,673 13018
Unrealized gain on foreign currency transiation 1820 18,423
Total cetarred tax liabilities BBH 854 689 544
NOTE 8 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Currant
Trade recelvables (o) 1.848.13 12,796,568
Less: allowance for doubtiul debity (50,000) (50,000)
: 11L918,13) 12,749,598
Othar advances (b) 114,125 87,838
Prapaymants 226,227 238,040
Daposits 12,838 B4.715
Othar receivables 774,737 LOSH, 154
Total currant trade and other receivablas, not 13,106,068 14,200 445
MNan=current
Other recelvableyg - 19.388
Total non=currant trade and othar recaivables C 19388

a) Trode recelvables principally comprise of premiurm amounts outstonding from
palicyholders, Trade recaivables are non-intarest bearing and generally settled on
40 - 60 days term.

b) Other advances are secured and subject to Interest.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 10. FINANCIAL ASSETS 2023 | 2022

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a) Held-to-maturity investments

Current

Term investrments with commerciol banks and financial institutions 10,888,427 10.277.804
Non-current

Term investrments with commercial banks, financiol institutions ond

corparote bonds 2,616,000 2495122

b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Equity Investrnents

Investmants in listed companies 3,580,412 3,559,987
Investrments in unlisted company §9,300 ‘88300
3659.712 3,658,287

e)  Valuation of Financial Assets

The Holding Company measuras fair values using the following tair value hierarchy that reflacts the
significance of the inputs used In making the Mmeasurements:

Level : fair value on Investment in listed companies is calculated using quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2: fair value on investment in unlisted company is colculated using inputs other than quoted
market prices included within Lavel 1 that are observable for the assat. either directly (as prices) or
indirectly (derived from prices).

Reconciliation of tinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Bolance at | January 3.659.287 3,753,857
Fair value logs on investment in listed ond unlisted companies, net (13,033) (103.177)
Purchase of financial assets ot foir value through profit or loss 13 458 8.507
Balonce ot 31 December 3659,N2 1.659.287
NOTE I1. DEFERRED COSTS

Detarred commission 244860 1,862,414
Catarrec relnsurance 3420 102,294
Tatal detarrec costs 2450.M L8964 708
NOTE 132. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Land and bulidings = at talr value 10,800,998 5.849,505
Add: additians 802,777 3,143,328
Add: change In talr value 161,481 1,708,185
Total Investment properties 1,865,286 10,800,898

Annual Report 2023



#FijiCare

INSEIRANCE LIMETED FINANCI

I
o
LA

TA

el
i

MENTS

)

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTD]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D)

in December 2022, investment properties were revalued by an independent ragisterad voluer, The
valuation methodology adopted by the valuer was Market Value Method.

These investment propertias were valued ot $10,730,000. The Group uses valuation techniques thot
include valuation gssessment and estimates based on observable and non-obsarvable market data
and ochservabie internal financial data to estimate the fair value of investment properties. The
directors believe thot the chosen valuation techniques ond agssumplions used were agppropriote in
determining the fair value of investment proparties.

The management and directors’ hove assessed the market value of all investment properties and
goncludes that the value of these propertias is reasonable thus, no revaluation is required except for
the property purchased during the year In Simlg, Lautoka,

Based on management and directors’ assessment of fair values and taking into consideration the
valuation by registered valuer in December 2023, the increase in market value over book value of
$161,49] has been recognised as an increase in fair value for investment property through profit or loss
in the tinancial stotements for the year ended 31 December 2023 The valuation methodology adaptad
by the valuer was income approach mathod.

Valuation of Investment Properties

The Group maasures fair values using the following tair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of tha inputs used in making the measuramants:

teval 3. fair value on investment properties is calculated using valuation techniques that include
valuation assassmant ond estimates bosed on ocbsarvable and non-obsarvable market data aond
obhsarvabla internal tinancial data,

NOTE 13, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Lwaswhaid Furninure LY EeL §7T
Improvemanis Hitings and Wi hnbe ey
atfice

equipme ng

Gross carrying amount

Balance at | January 2022 122,6R0 B70,'64 478,286 L47T.130
Additions 4['}.803_ 3%]0,*:_*?&-_ 431,784
Baolance ot 31 December 2022 183,488 1261140 478,286 1902514
Additions 48,80 a". 253.818 209,247 509.872
Balance at 31 December 2023 210,385 1L.614 668 687,531 2412886
Accumulated depreciation

Balance at | January 2022 3038 826,689 641698 693,823
Depreciation expense 3,655 15,281 85323 214 259
Balance at 31 December 2022 6,683 741870 159.519 208,182
Deprecliation expense 4,558 153,967 17,801 276,418
Balance at 31 Decembar 2023 1,251 ROS 037 277,410 1184 508
Net book value

Asat 3 Decembar 2042 IE&.?BG_, E18.170 318,767 004,732
As at 3 December 2023 199,144 619,021 410,023 1,228,288
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPAMIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Software

Gross carrying amount

Eulunce atl Jnnuuw ‘.59?..3?: ‘339.439
Additions 318,274 ?52,933_
Balance at 31 December 1.810.646 1582372
Accumulated amortisation

Balance at 1 January L147.384 855879
Amaortisation expense ~ N8509 251505
Balance at 3] December 1L.463.8583 1147 384
Met book value 446,753 444,988

NOTE 18, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Poayable Lo reinsurers 480,880 601,194
Other payables and occrued liabllities 1,766 441 1.540.082
Total trade and other payables 2.217.3 2,141,276

(a)Payable to reinsurers principally comprise amounts outstanding for reinsurance pramium and
on-going costs. These are non-interest bearing and generally settled on 30 - 90 days term

NOTE 16. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

unearned premiums

Unearned pramiums as at | January 18.177.280 17528731
Maovament during the year, nat 4,566,808 1648540
Balance as at 31 Decembaer 23,774,086 18,177,280
Outstanding claims

Gross outstanding claims as ot | Januory 7,032,609 3722747
Mavament during the year, nat (1,326,858) 3300862
Balance as at 3] December 5,706,753 7,032,809
Less: Reingurance recoveries [Hlﬂﬂﬂg (10,000)
Less: Ralnsurance on pald claims (33,628 -
Outstanding claimas, net 5,662,125 1.022.8609
Claims administration provision

Claims administration provisian as ot | January 349,461 241334
Mavemaent during the year, net 4,935 108,027
Balance as at 31 December 354,396 349,461
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTD]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

MOTE 18. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTD)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Claims incurred but not reported

Claims incurred but not reported as at | January 4244912 3479518
Movement during the year, net 682,813 765394
Claims incurred but not reported, net 4,927,525 4244912
Catastrophic provision (a) 178,752 167,530
Total insurance contract liabilltiss, nat 34,897,884 30961792

(o) The subsidiary company, VanCare Insurance Limited s required to make o contingancy
provigsion reterred to as a catastrophic provision which is 3% of total gross premiums undes

the Insurance Act of Vanuatu

NOTE 17. EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS

Frovision tor annual leave:

Balance at | January 151,493
fdcitions 18,2684
Leave token (25.925)
Balancea at 31 December 143852

Frovigion for sevearonoa;

Bolance at | January 54,791
Additians 7,829
Bolance at 31 December 62.720
Total current employee entitlements 206,572

NOTE 18, SHARE CAPITAL

8. 796
46,184
(12.487)

151,493

46,516
8.275

54,791
206,284

lssued and paid up copital - 8,607,742 ordinary sharas 6.043. 662

NOTE 18 DIVIDENDS

5.043.662

Riviclane 1.463.318
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 20, PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax has been determined after charging the
following expenses;

Auditor's remuneration for;

- Audit fees - BDO §5.500 47,500
= Audit fees = Barrett & Partners 1,794 13,746
- DOther services 30,048 33,723
Consultancy fees 27,710 21,885
Actuarial sarvicas 194,633 150,364
Directars’ feas 101,610 119,651
Depreciation and amaortisation expense 945,47 761,800
Supearannuation 122,433 85,898
Salaries, wages, training levy ond allowances 1.610,735 1,767,573

NOTE 21. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

@) Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cosh on hand and balanca with banks. Cash andcosh
squivalents included in the consolidated statermnent of cash llows comprise the foliowing
consolidated staternent of linancial position amounts:

Cash on hand and at bank 18,224,801 16,071.301
Total cash and cash equivalents 18,224,801 18,07,30)
NOTE 22 EARMNINGS PER SHARE

Profit tar the yvear used in ealculating earmings per share 1,.350L318 5,833,759
Weighted average number of ardinary shares outstanding used in =
calculating basic and diluted earnings per share B.607.742 B.B07.742
Basic and diluted earnings per share - cents 1570 6604

NOTE 23. LEASES

As 1 legaae

(a) Right-of-use assets

Balance at | January 1,032,354 532.4M
Effact ol maodification to lease terms 19,063 (2486,548)
Additions for the year 41,310 1,042 565
Disposal (42.426) .
Dopraciation charge tor the year (352,646) (2986,136)
Balance at 31 December 897,785 1.032,354
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [conT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

() Lease liabilities
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less thon one year 220,679 37,030

One to five years 112,870 317,375

More than five years 1,718,435 1,739,336

Total undiscounted lease liabilities ot 31 December ) 2051984 _2.427,740

Lease liabilities included in the consolidated statement of financial

position at 31 December

Current 194 781 325144

Non-current 534,550 733188
728,331 1,062,332

Amounts recognised in prolit or loss

Interest on lease labilities 38.825 52,120

Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows

Totol cash cutflow for lenses ; 355_},945 279,41

Reconciliation of movement of liabllities to cash flows from financing

activities

Balance at | January 1,082,332 545,724

Changes from financing cash flows

Paymeant of lease liabllities (350,048) (279.41)

lotal ehanges from linancing cash flows (350,948) (279,411}

Othaer changes - llability related

New lease liabllitles 41,310 1,042,568

Change in lease tarm 19.063 (246.548)

Disposal (42.426) "

Intarest axpanss of leasa liabilities 38.825 52120

Interost pald of lease llabilities (38.825) (52120)

Total llabilty related othar changes 17,947 796,019

Balance at 31 December _ 728,331 1,082,332

NOTE 24 COMMITMENTS

a) Capltal expenditure commitments lor software upgrades and for IFRS 17 implementation
by holding company, and purchase of aguipment by subsidiary companies are as lollows:

Approved and cammitted 150,000 -
Appraved but not committed 2,354 180 2,685,580
Total capital expenditure commitments 2504180 2.685.580

h) Operating expense commitments controcted tor rantals are as follows:

Nat latar than ane year 129,730 21,600
Tatal oparating expense commitmants for rentals 129,730 21,600
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FLIICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 24.

COMMITMENTS (CONT'D)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(@) Operating income commitments contracted for rentals are as follows:

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not five years

Tatal operating income commitments

NOTE 25,

CONTIMGENT LIABILITIES

132,654
18,400

152,054

63,702

863,702

Contingent liabilities exist with respect to the following:
Indemnity guarantaes

Total contingerit liabllities

750
750

NOTE 26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Entity Place of
incorporation

VanCare Insurance Limited VarnuJatu

WeCare Pta Limited Fiji

OmniCare Pte Limited Fiji

MOTE 27.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) oOperating segments
The Group operates pradominantly in the insurance incustry

Medical Term Life
and Health
$ $
Ravenue Deg 23 26575072 7,845 818
Det 22 21582450 7,629,951
Rosult (Revenue less  Dec 23 (1,778,005) 404,181
allocated costs) Dec 22(4,325,968) (133,541)

Acd: Unallocated -
other revenue:
Dividane Income,
Interest Income, rental
Incame, falr value gain
on equity Investrments
ane an investment

properties, gain on Dec 23
sale of fixed assets Detc 22
aned miscellaneous

Incorme

Less Unallocated - Dac 23

expanses and income Dec 27
tax

Profit after Income tax Dac 23
Dag 22

Annual Report 2023

Genaeral
Insurance

14,300,254
18,881,778

4,016 968
11,380,052

Clinical
Incoma

345,100
264 484

681908
248,402

Group
Totail
$
48168,045
48358673

3324120
11668.945

937,24)
2574834

2,910,042
38n.020

L361.319
6.9833,759
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 '

Mote 27. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

(a) Operating segments (Cont'd)

Segment assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilities cannot be reasonably allocated between the operating segmants. Accordingly, this
information has not been provided under segment information

Additional information

Similarly, depreciotion and other non-cash items cannot be reasonably aliocated between the
operating segments, Accordingly, this information has not been provided under segment information
(b) Geographical segment

The Group operates in Fijl and Vanuatu.

Revenue from Fiji and Vanuotu operations amounts to $45,430 851 and $2.738,184, respectively Profit alter
income tox from Fiji and Vanuatu operations amounts to $178,438 and §1172.881, respectively.

NOTE 28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) Directors

The names of parsons who were directors of the Holding Company at any time during the financial year
are as lollows!

Dumith Fernando ~ Chairrmar

Avinesh Raju

Jenny Seeto

Sylvain Flore

Pater McPherson (resigned on May 2023)

(b)  Thetransactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties during the yeor ended 31 Decembear 2023 and 2022 with approximate
transaction values are summarized os follows:

Related Party Relationship Nature of transoction 2023 2022
s 5

Fallon Invastmant Pte Director related antity  Renl expanse 157,153 B4,100

Limited

MIOT Invastmeant Fijl Directar related antity  Rental income 12.000

Pte Limited

Mount Sophia Venture Director related entity  Cansultation expense 65,109 5153

Fijl Limitad

Toorak Central Pte Directar ralated antity  Accommaodation 4 865

Limited
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCTIAL STATEMENTS [conT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT'D)

(¢) Ownershipinterests
The ownership interests in subsidiary companies is disclosed in Note 26.
(d) Director Fees
Directors fees of $101,610 (2022 $119.651) was paid to the non-executive directors.

(e) Key management personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly.
including any director {whethear executive or otherwise) of that entity.

During the year, Executive Director, Group Chief Operating Officer, Group Chief Financiol
Cfficer, Group Chief Information Officer, Group Chief Marketing Officer, Cloims Manager,
Group Manager Accounting & Finance, Manager Accounting & Finance and Chief Operating
Cfficer - VanCare Insurance Limited were identified as key management personnel, with the
greatest authority and responsibility for the planning, directing ond controlling the octivities
of the Group.

The remuneration of the key management parsonnel during the year was as follows:

2023 2022
S s
Salaries and other short-term employee benelits 1,082,338 1215685

NOTE 29 INSURANMCE CONTRACTS RISK MANAGEMENT

A kay risk of oparating in the general insurance industry is the exposura to insurance risk arising
trom undarwriting genaral insurance contracts. Tha insurance contracts transfer risk to the
Insurar by indemnifying the palicyhoiders against adverse affects arising from the occurrence
of specified uncertain future events. The risk is that the actual amaount of claims to be paid in
ralation to contracts will be difterant to the amount estimated at the time a product was
dasigned and priced, The Group is exposed to this risk because the price for a contract must be
sot before the lossas relating to the product are known. Hence, the insurance business involves
inherent uncertainty,

The consolldated Group also laces other risks relating to the conduct of the general Insurance
Busginess including Hinanclal rigks.

A fundamental part of the overall risk managamaent strategy is the effective governance and
management of the risks that impact the omount, timing ond uncertointy of the cash llows
arising from Insurance cantracts.

(a) Risk management objectives and policies for mitigating Insurance risk

The Insurance activities primaorily involve the underwriting of risks and the monagement of
claims. A disciplined approach to risk managemaent is adopted rather than a premium volume
or market share oriented approoch. It is belleved this approach provides the greatest long term
likelihood of being able to meet the objectives of all stakeholders, including peolicyholders,
lenders and equity holders.

The tisk management aativities can be broadly separated into underwriting (acceptance and
pricing risk), claims management and investmant management. The objective of these risk
menagement functions Is to enhance the longer term financial performance of the overall

Insurance oparations
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Pl AN LXTTRD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 29. INSURANCE CONTRACTS RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

(a) Risk management objectives and policies for mitigating insurance risk (Cont'd)

The key policies in place to mitigate risks arising from undsrwriting insurance contracts inciude
the follawing:

® Acceptance of risk - insurance and reinsurance policies are written in accordance with
lecal management practices and regulations within each jurisdiction. Maximum fimits ore
set for the occeptance df risk on an individual controct basis. Management information
systems are maintained that provide up-to-dote, relioble data on the risks to which the
business is exposed at any point In time. EHforts are maode, including ploin language policy
terms, to ensure there (s no misalignment between whaot policyholders parceive will be paid
when a policy is initially seld and what is aoctually paid when a claim is made.

® Pricing - Statistical models are used which combing historical and projected data to
colculate premiums and monitor claims patterns for each class of business. The data used
includes historical pricing and claims analysis tor each class of business as well as currant
developments in the respective markets and ciasses of business.

e Reinsurance - The use of reinsurance to limit exposure to large single claims and the
accumulation of cloims that arise from the same event or the accumulation of similar
avents. This includes the monitoring of reinsurars’ cradit risk to control axposurs to
reinsurance counterparty default,

e Claims management = Initial claim determination is managed by claims officers with the
requisite degree of experience and compaetence with the assistance, where appropriate, or
other party with specialist knowledge. It Is the Group's policy to respond and settia claims
wflfw whenaver possible and to pay cloims fairly, based on the policyholder's full
entitiements.

(b) Terms and conditions of Insurance contracts

The terms and conditions attaching te insurance controcts affect the level of insurance
risk aecepted. Insurance contracts aore ganerntgv entered into on an annual basis and ot
the time of antaring into a contract all tarms and conditions are negotioble or, in the case
ol renewals, renegotiable. The majority of direct insurance contracts written are entered
into on a standard form basis. Non-standard and leng term policies may only be written
If expredsly approved by o person with appropriaote delegated outhority. There are no
spaclal terms and conditions in any non-standard contracts that would have a matarial
impagt an the consolidated tinancial statements.

(e) Creditrisk

Finanalal assets or liabllities arising from insurance contracts are presented in the
consolidated statement of tinancial position at the amount that best represents the
maximum credit risk exposure at the reporting date.

The credit risk relating to insurance contracts relates primarily to premium receivoble
which ts due from Individual policyholders and intermediaries (grukau and agents). The
brokers and ogents collect premium from policyholders and remit the monies to the
ingurar in accordance with contractual arrangements. The recoverability of premium
recalvable is assessed and provigion is made lor impairment based on objective
ovidence and having regard to past default experience.

(d) oOperational risk

Operational risk e the risk of tinanclal loss (including lost opportunities) resulting from
external avents and/or iInadequate or lailed internal processes, poople and systems to
perform as requited, Operational risk can have overlaps with all of the other risk
categories. When contraols foll, operational risks can cause domage to reputation, can
have legal or ragulatory Implications or can lead to financial loss. The Group cannot
expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework
and by monitoring and responding te potential risks, is able to manage risks
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INFERASCE LIMITRD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTD]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 29. INSURANCE CONTRACTS RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

(d) o©Operational risk (Cont'd)

Operational risk is identified and ossessed on an ongeing basis and the copital management
strategy includes consideration of operational risk. Management and staif are responsible for
Identifying, assessing and managing operational risks in accordance with their roles and
responsibilities.

(e) Interest rate risk

The underwriting of general insurance contracts creates exposure to the risk that interast rate
movameants may materially impact the value of the outstonding claims liability. Movement in
intgrest rates impact the determination of the lability through the selection of discount rates.
Discounting the liability is in effect allowing for future investment earnings on the assets held
to back the insurance liabilities.

The tunds held to pay outstanding claims are invested principally in fixed rates securities.
Movements in market interest rates affect the value of the fixed interest securities. Hancs,
movamaeants in intarest rates should have minimal impact on the insurance profit for the year
due to movemaeant in investment income on asset backing insurance liabliities offsetting the
impact of movemants in the discounting rotes in the ciaims liabllities.

(f) concentration of insurance risk

The exposure to concentrations of insurance risk is mitigated by o portfolio diversified into
many classes of buginess and by the utilisation of reinsurance.

Concantration risk is particularly relevant in the case ot catastrophas which generaily rasult in
a cancentration of aftected policyholders over and above the norm and which constitutas the
largest individual potential tinancial loss. Catastrophe losses are an inharent risk of the genaral
surance Incdustry that has cantributed, and will continue ta contribute, to potenticlly material
yadr-to-yaar fluctuations on the result of operations and tinancial position. The nature and
level of catastrophe in any period cannot ba pradicted accurately but can be estimoted
through the utilisation of predictive modeis. Each year, the Group sets its tolerance for
concentration risk and purchase reinsurance in axcess of these tolerances

(@) Other risk

Ragulatary risk

The Group'y profitabllity can be impacted by regulatory ogencies which govern the business
gector [n Fijl ond Vanuatu. Specifically, finonciol tronsactions are monitored by Reserve Bonk of
Fiji (RBF) and Reserve Bank of Vanuatu (REBV), and as an authorised underwriter of insurance
rigks, the Group lg subject to licence and regulatory control by RBF and REV.

NOTE 30 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group s axposed to o variety of financial risks in the normal course of business; market risk
(forelgn exchange risk, intarast rate risk and aquity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's averall rigk managemaent programmae focutes on the unpradictabllity of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential ndverse affects on tha Group's tinancial parformance

Risk managemant is carrled out by executive managemant. Executive managemant identifies,
evaluotes and monitars tinancial risks in close co~operation with the operating units.
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 30, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTD)

(a)  Market risk

Market risk is the risk thot changes in the market prices, such as foreign exchange rotes, infsrest rote and
equity prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its haldings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to contral markst risk exposures within acceptable porameters
while eptimising the return on risk.

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group does not hava significant transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence, axposures to
axchange rate fluctuations is minimal

(i)  Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the volue or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate
beccuse of changes in market interest rates. The exposure to interest rate risk results from the hoiding of
financial assets and liabilities In the normal course of business.

Fixed interast rate assats and variable intarest rote liobilities creote exposure to fair value intarest rote risk.
The Group mitigotes interest rate risk by maintaining an appropriote mix of instruments.

(iil) Equity price risk
Equity price risk is defined os exposure to movemants in investmant prices Ivalues, Le., the doilar effect of
a change in market price [value of investments. The Group minimizes the risks by

a) Diversitying the investments portfolic across assets classes;
b) Diversifying the aquity and debt portfolios across sectors and securities to the prascribad mit;
¢) Proper cisset (stock) selection based on relative value after a resaarch process; and

o) Appropriate investments limits that cover assat aliocation, concentration, regional locotion and
CUrrancy.

(b) Credit risk

Credit rlsk is the risk of financiol loss as a result of failure by a customer or counterparty 1o meet its
contractual obligations. Credit risk is manoged at Group and ot individual company level

Cradit risk relating to Insurance contracts is disclosed in Note 28(c).

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single undarwriting counterparty or
any Group of underwriting counterparties having similar characteristics. The carrying amount of financial
assats recorded in the consolidated financial statermants, net of any alliowances for losses, reprasants the
Group's maximum exposure to cract rsk.

Credit rigk also arises from cash at banks and deposits with bonks. Deposits are made only with reputable
financial Institutions which are regulated by Reserve Bank of Fiji with known sound financial standing The
deposits are also approved by the Treasury & Investment Committee and guided by the investment Policy.

(e)  Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk ks concerned with tha rigk of there being insufficient cash resources to meat payment
obligations without attecting the daily operations or the financial condition of the Group. Liquidity
facilitates the ability to meet axpacted and unexpactad requiremants for cash. The liquidity position is
derlvad trom operating cash flows, investrmaent portfolios and occess to outside sources of liquidity such as
Bank, rainsurance arrangamaents and other sources.

Sound liguidity risk management implies maintaining sutficient cosh and marketable securities, the
avallabllity of funding through an odequate amount of committed credit locilites ond the ability 1o
close-out market pogitions. The nature of insurance activities means that the timing and amount of cash

Naws cire uncortain,
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FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 30.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

(e) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Managernent of liquidity risk includes asset and liability management strategies. The assets held to
back insurance liabilities consist predominantly of held-to-maturity investments. The assats are
managed 50 as to effectively match the maturity profile of the assets with the expected pattern of
claims payments.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking focilities ond resarve
barrowing facilities by cantinuously manitaring forecast and actual eash flows.

NOTE 31.
The objectives of the Group in regards (o management of capital adequacy are:

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

(i) to comply with Policy Statement 3B "Sclvency Requirements tor Insurars Licensad to Conduct
General Insurance Business in Fiji" issuad by Reserve Bank of Fiji

(i) to maintain a strong capital base to cover the inharent risks of the business: and
(1i)  to support the future development and growth of the business to maximise shareholder value.

The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for copital management, and approves copital
policy and minimum capital levels and limits. The level of target surplus takes account of
managemaeant assessments of actual risk and torecasts/stress testing of future copital requirements.

The solvency position of the Holding Campany is determined by the Insurance Act of 1988 (Fiji) and
governed by the Reserve Bank of Fiji (RBF) and the solvency position of VanCare Insurance Limited is
determined by the Insurance Act No 54 of 2008 (Vanuatu) and governed by the Reserve Bank of
Vanuatu (RBV), The Group reviews its solvency requirements quarterly and submits the same 1o REF
and RBY, for their recorgls,

As at 31 Decomber 2023, the Group complied with the solvency requirements.

NOTE 32.

MATURITY AMALY SIS

The tollowing analysis of monetary assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2023 ond 2022 is based
on contractual terms,

31 December 2023
Atcall ldaytol Over 3 Over | Total
months monthsto yeartoh
1 r years
$ 5 ml 1 1
Assots
Cash on hand and at bank 18,224,801 - - 18.224 800
Trade and ather recaivables - 9,248,722 1856,337 - 13,108,069
Financlal assets at fair value through
profit or loss - 3,658,712 = 385972
Halcl=te maturity Investrmanta - 2488133 7,940 419 3087878 13504427
Current tax assat - 474 572 - - 474572
18,224,801 12,190,427 15458468 3097875 48889050
Liabilities
Trade and other payables - 2.207.30 - - 2.211.32
Loggs ll:l.‘lbillb,r - 48,695 146,086 534 650 729,33
Inaurance contract liabiitles, net of
unvarned pramium = 10,944,046 - = 10,944,046
- 13,210,082 148,086 534 550 13890688

(109 55
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[T RANCE LIVITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIJICARE INSURANCE LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D]
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

NOTE 32. MATURITY ANALYSIS (CONTD)

31 December 2022
Atcall ldoyto3 Over 3 Over | Total
months meonths to yearto 5
| year years
s $ $ s S
Assets
Cash on hand and at bank 16,071,301 - - = 16071301
Trade and other receivables - 10,306,128 3903316 19.388 14228833
Financial assels at lair value through
prafit or logs - - 3.658.287 - 3659287
Held-to maturity investments . 2,379,981 7,887,823 2495122 12,772928
16,071,301 12,686,110 15,460,426 2514510 45,732.347
Liabilities
Trade and other payables - 2,141,278 - 2141278
Currant tax liability - - m,272 - man
Laaaa liability 30, 217,181 Bi4.470 1062332
Insuranca contract liabilities, net of
uneaarred pramium - 1,616,982 - - 1,618,982

13,788,968 328,423 Bl4.470 1493) 862

NOTE 33, SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

@) During the year, In February 2023, the Government of Fiji had announced that proo! of
vaceination or travel Insurance lor international travellers arriving in the country was no longer
required This had drastic impact on the revenue stream of travel insurance for the holding
company In the current financial year.

b) In accordance with Income Tax (Rates of Tax and Levies) (Amendmaent) Regulations 2023 of
Fijl, commaencing from financial year ended 31 Decamber 2023 (tax year 2023), the Fijl entities are
subject to corporate incomae tax at the rate of 25%. Accordingly, the corporate income tax rate
has Increased to 28% from tinancial year ended 31 December 2023, Delerred tax ossets ond
deferred tax llabllities have been re-calculated at 26% and the elfect of change In tox rate has
been adjusted to income tax axpanse for the year ended 31 Dacember 2023 for Fijl enlities

NOTE 34 EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

No matters or clreumstances have arisen since the and ol the financial year, which would require
adjustments to, ar disclosure in the linancial stotemaents
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INRURLANTE 1MITED: SPX Listing Requirements

1. Statement of interest (direct and indirect) of each director in the share capital ¢f the company as at
31 December 2023

2. Distribution of ordinary shareholders:

Distribution of Shareholding Shares Totol % Holding
Less than 500 13,305 | 273587 | 318%
501 to 5,000 50 80768 | 0.94%
5,001 10 10,000 g | 62944 | 073%
10,001 to 20,000 4 60,608 | 0.70%
20,001 to 30,000 5 13,792 132%
30,001 to 40,000 1 30105 | 0.35%
40,001 to 50,000 o | - | 0.00%
50,001 to 100,000 4 | N30 | 385%
100,001 to 1,000,000 3 138442 | 1323%
over 1,000,000 T | 6533176 | 75.90%
Tatal 13,382 B.607.742 100
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PENTTR A NCT LIMTTED

SOUTH PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE - LISTING REQUIREMENTS {CONT'D}
3. Disclosure on the trading resuit of the subsidiary company under section 51.2(x)

a) Country of Operation and Incorporation: Vanuatu

VAMCARE INSURANCE LIMITED

Revenue 2,735,184 2507877
Cther income 99499 144.082
Less:

Dapreciation and amortisation (25,755) (38.608)
Interest expense - -
Other expense (1.5468.547) (1333843)

Income tax expanse = =

Total comprehensive incorme/ (loss) for the year 117288 1.279.308

Total Assets 1866087 7.046.454
Total Liabillties 3,381,700 2782817
Sharaholders Equity 4504387 4,283,837

b) Country of Gperation and incorparation: Fijl

WECARE PTE LIMITED

2022

1 ]

Revenue 104,761 A 8T8

Othaer Income 163,573 1.338.165
Less;

Dapreciation and amartisation . -

Intarest expense (51125) (20,287)

Othar expense (264,095) (126,055)

Income tax expense (234,440) (N8,374)

fotal comprahensiva incoma/ (loss) for the year (272,226) 515,327
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IR ANEE LIMITED SPX Listing Requirements

Total Assats 12,790,452 noZz1rs
Total Liakilities 1.98& 563 1245 064
Shareholdars Equity 10803888 2 1087815

¢) Country of Oparation and Incorporation: Fijil

OMMICARE PTE LIMITED

2023 2022
s L
Revenue LI7s.221 428572
Gthar Ingome
Less:
Dapreciation and amortisation (126,073) (70832)
Interest expense (59.854) (8,739)
Other expense (1133.059) (rasa0n)
Ineome tax expense . (1an7)
Total camprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (143.788) (458.217)
2023 2022
Totall Asseats L52H.954 1,826,373
fotal Liabilities 1L325.015 681669
Shareholders Equity 203,839 347,704
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DSRUTLANCE LTTED SPX Listing Requirements

SOUTH PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE - LISTING REQUIREMENTS{CONT D}

Top 20 Shareholders

As of 3]st December 2023, the top 20 shareholders held 8,208,381 shares which is equal 1o 9536% of the
total issued 8,607,742 fully paid shares.
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INSURANCE LIMITED SPX Listing Requirements

SOUTH PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE - LISTING REQUIREMENTS{CONTD}

5. Disclosure under section 51.2 (xiv):
Summary of Key Financial Results for the Previous Five Years (Consolidated)

5 s 1 s $
2019 2020 202 2022 2023
Net Profit | (Loss) after tox 4404808 @ 1597328 6,078045 58533759 1351315
Currant Assets A4 5R1308 34891310 41727544 | 46191332 48BI3570
' Non - Current Assets . 4288115 3880198 B48628!5 15825843 16,889,708
Total Assets 38,849,513 38,871,508 50,190,459 62,017,175 65713678
Current Liokilities 23150508 22327243 27897928 | 33749788 37516558
Mon - Current Liabillties 349,404 20151 588,827 1422732 1421404
Total Liabilities 23,499,808 22528754 28268758 . 35,172,500 38,937,982
shareholdars Equity 15,349,604 16,342,754 21,923,704 26,844,675 26,775,716

6. Disclosure under section §1.2 (xv) (a):

2008 2020 20 2022 2023
Dividend par share 0.08 0.08 0.05 010 o7
7. Disclosure under section 51.2 (xv) (b):
Earnings | (loss) per share (Consolidated)
Basic earnings | (loss) per share

2018 2020 00 2022 2023
Cents per share 61.65 18.58 70.61 68.94 1570
Diluted sarmnings [ (loss) per share

2018 2020 200 2022 2023
Cents per share 51.5% 1858 10.61 6H 94 15.70
8, Disclosure under section 51.2 (xv) (e):
Net tangible caset per share:

2018 2020 200 2022 2023
Cantp par share 1.76 |66 250 07 306
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SOUTH PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE - LISTING REQUIREMENTS {CONT'D}

9. Disclosure under section 51.2 (xv) (d):

Share price during the year (per share)

Highest 15.74
Lowesst 880
On 28th Becember 574

10. Disclosure under section 51,2 (wiii):
Meeting of the board

Directors Number of meetings

entitled to attend

Mr. Dumith Fernanda | 3 4 N/A
Mr. Avi Raju | 4 | “ | N/A
Mr. Pater McPharson | 2 2 N/A
Ms. Janny Seeto 4 4 NJA
Mr. Sylveiin Flore | 4 4 M/A

Company Secretary

:'I
Z
—

Mr Victor Robert 4

The Board mat 4 times during the financial year endad 3ist December 2023

a5 s e s@ BB

BN RN LY L
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-
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INSERANCH [MEEED SPX Listing Requirements

SOUTH PACIFIC STOCK EXCHANGE - LISTING REQUIREMENTS {CONT D}

11. Disclosure under section 51.2 (ix):

LISTED SECURITIES QUANTITY CURRENT VALUE TOTAL VALLE
ATLANTIC & PACIFIC PACKAGING COMPANY LIMITED (APF) 23000 297 88310
RB PATEL GROUP LIMITED (RBG) | IE00 s 978,125
COMMUNICATIONS (FlJt) LUmiTED (CFL) 35,000 880 238,000
AMALGAMATED TELECOM HOLDINGS LIMITED (ATH) | e3ss | 200 352,792
THE RICE COMPANY OF FIJI LIMITED (RCF) - 2000 | 394 218,680
FLUI TELEVISION LIMITED (FTV) | 12085 210 26379
FMF FOODS LUMITED (FMF) | 191147 188 361,268
VB HOLDINGS LIMITED (VBH) | 3143 | A00 18858
PLEASS GLOBAL LIMITED (PBP) - 65357 | 320 209,142
TOYOTA TSUSHO (SOUTH SEA) LUMITED (TT5) 0000 | 2000 200,000
VISION INVESTMENTS LIMITED (ViL) 50000 A07 203,500
KONTIK FINANCE LIMITED (KFL) | 133045 | 13 151,368
PORT DENARAU MARINA LUMITED (POM) | 250000 | 214 835,000

TOTAL | 1284573 3,560,412

UNLISTED SECURITIES QUANTITY CURRENT VALUE TOTAL VALLUE
THE FIJI GAS COMPAMNY LIMITED a3ig 30,00 49,300
TOTAL 3.310 §9.300
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Travel Smarter & Safer with
Our Comprehensive Travel Insurance

FijiCare Comprehensive Travel
Insurance Plans are now available!

Buy online in 4 easy steps:

O Go to website, click on buy policy
O select your preferred plan
O Fill in details, then proceed

O Make the payment
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CONTACT US

FijiCare Insurance Limited
Level 9, FNPF Place, 343-359
Victoria Parade,Suva, Fiji,
PO Box 15808, Suva, Fijl
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